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Contents METTLER TOLEDO

Our Solutions

Lefter to Shareholders

METTLER TOLEDQ is a leading global provider of precision instruments and services.
We are the world’s largest manufacturer of weighing solutions for laboratory,
industrial and food retailing applications.

Form 10-K

Corporate Information

Within our laboratory offering, we are a market leader in two of the most frequently
used instruments in a lab — balances and pipettes. We hold top-three market positions
in several related analytical instruments. We also are a top provider of automated
chemistry systems used in drug discovery and have a leading position in certain
process analytics applications. Our industrial instruments range from terminals
and weighing sensors for production and quality control to end-of-line inspection
systems for packaged goods, where we lead the market. For food retailers, we offer
PC-based networked solutions for the management of fresh goods. Software is also
an important differentiating factor for METTLER TOLEDO across many of our
product lines.

g Our global services network is one of the most comprehensive in the industry.
N We assist our customers with everything from calibrating instruments to ensuring
NS . . ,
: \ NN compliance with FDA regulations.

To learn more about us, we encourage you to review our Investor Guide, which
provides further information about our solutions and their value to customers,
our competitive strengths and our growth strategies.
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Portions of this report may contain “forward-looking statements” under the Private
Securifies Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-tooking statements are subject to

tisks and uncertainties that could cause actual events or results fo differ materiolly fram
those expressed in or implied by the stafements. Further information concerning issues
that could materially affect financial performance is confained in the “Factors affecting our
future operating resulls” and “Forward-Looking Statements and Associated Risks” sections
of the 10-K.




METTLER TOLEDO has strong worldwide leadership positions. A significant majority
of our instrument sales are from products that are global leaders in their segment.
We have one of the most extensive global sales and service organizations among
precision instrument companies, with approximately 4,500 or more than one-half
of our emplovees providing sales and service in 37 countries. In R&D, approximately
800 professionals work daily on maintaining our technology lead. An increasingly
large percentage of our R&D investment is for software development.

Our Solutions

Providing Value tfo Customers Worldwide

Laboratory
Solutions

Our laboratory instruments are the founda-  Our pipetfes, widely used

tion of research labs all over the world. in labs to measure and
We are the market leader in balances, dispense small volumes
the most commonly used instrument in of liquid, lead the market
the lab. In addition, scientists turn to our because of their innova-
analytical instruments, such as titrators tive ergonomic design.
and thermal analysis, when they need Our proprietary designs
defails on composition or properties and disposable tips

of liquids or substances. information ensure reliable perform-
generated by our instruments can be ance while preventing
analyzed and managed in our applica- repetitive strain injuries.

tion-specific software and interfaced
with our customers’ information systems.

We shorten time-to-market
for life sciences customers
by accelerating the synthe-
sis, purification and process
research and development
of drug candidafes through
integration, automation
and sophisticated software
solutions.




Process
Analytics

Product
Inspection

Our in-line instruments for
measuring critical fiquid
parameters, such as pH

and oxygen levels and water
conductivity and resistivity,
enable pharmaceutical,
biotech and other process
companies fo continuously
ensure product quality and
meet regulafory standards.

Integrated packaging lines
in food, beverage and phar-
maceutical companies use
our instruments for dynamic
quality and quantity control.
We ensure the quality of
contents through metal
detection and X-ray visioning,
and we ensure the integrity
of packages through check-
weighing and automated
combination weighers.

i

Indusirial
Insfruments

Our instruments and software com-
bine to meet manufacturing pro-
duction and quality control needs.
We offer weighing sensors, scale
terminals and software fo control
automated manufacturing, and
versatile instruments that dispense
and formulate, fill and batch, weigh
and count. For express carriers,
in-motion weighing, dimensioning
and identification solutions speed
throughput and increase revenue.
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Retail
Solutions

From food retailers” receiving
docks to their checkout counters,
we enhance efficient handling

of fresh goods with weighing,
packaging, pricing, wrapping
and labeling solutions. Qur
software solutions enable
refailers fo optimally manage
both fresh and nonperishable
goods. Moreover, our Infernet-
enabled scale allows retailers

to remotely manage prices,
inventory, promotions and more.
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Robert F. Spoerry
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[ appreciate the opportunity that this letter affords me each vear to review our Company's progress with you.
After spending much of our time during the last few years managing through difficult markets and concen-
trating on our cost structure, in 2004 we turned our focus toward growth. Among the highlights, we launched
a major program for sales and marketing excellence, introduced key new products and grew our Chinese
operations significantly, We also strengthened our corporate governance to suit today’s more regulated envi-
ronment. We accomplished all this while maintaining our cost discipline.

Qur focus on growth reflected improving market conditions with our customers. Customers of our laboratory
instruments returned to an increased investment mode, and we saw solid growth trends with our many
new products. Industrial customers in Europe, and to a lesser extent in the Americas, were more tepid in their
spending but this began to improve at the end of the year. Our industrial customers invested significantly

in capacity expansion in Asia, specifically China, and we enjoyed outstanding growth as a result. Our food
retailing customers began to invest after several years of reduced spending levels.

Overall, this improved level of customer spending translated into a solid financial performance for us. We
also made good progress with our strategic initiatives in 2004, We believe these initiatives have taken firm
hold in our organization and should position us to unleash our growth potential.

Now I would like to tell you more about our key initiatives.

The spinnaker sail symbolizes the
momentum we can achieve
through our new sales, service
and marketing initiative.




Paving the Way for Growth

A primary way we are accelerating our growth and gaining market share is through increasing the effective-
ness of our global sales, service and marketing organization. We are very excited about this initiative,
which we call project Spinnaker. In a sailboat, the spinnaker sail builds momentum and propels the boat
forward by optimally taking advantage of the wind. We began the initiative by reorganizing our sales, service
and marketing functions into a global organization. We gathered more than 200 of our worldwide marketing
professionals and held detailed workshops to explore about 150 growth opportunities. Focusing on areas of
greatest impact, we are extending our segment marketing programs and refining our techniques to significantly
increase lead generation. We are also working to improve gross margins through more structured pricing and
discounting and an emphasis on value selling. Finally, we are enhancing the use of automation tools for our
field service force. These are only our initial steps in what will be an ongoing program to improve revenue
growth and the productivity of our worldwide sales and service force, while increasing customer satisfaction.

An equally strong growth driver is new products. Indeed, we introduced a strong array of new products in
2004 and will continue that momentum this year.

In our lab business, we will soon launch a new high-end analytical balance, XP, targeted to customers in
regulated markets where compliance is important. This balance is a key part of the replacement of our
entire balance portfolio, the most comprehensive and swiftest product line replacement in our history and
one which will cement our market leadership in balances. The upgrade of our line, to be completed by
the end of 2005, reduces our product platforms from eight to three, providing us synergies in manufac-
turing, R&D and training. Most importantly, this upgrade provides significant benefits to customers, g
including faster weighing, easier cleaning, enhanced man-machine interface and improved communi-
cation. Our new balances are used in conjunction with our instrument control software, LabX.
Increasingly, software is becoming a differentiating factor for METTLER TOLEDO as we provide substantial
value to our customers through enhanced data management, easier regulatory compliance and the ability
to network and control numerous instruments from a central location.

In process analytics, we rolled out a new carbon dioxide sensor, which allows biopharma companies to obtain
precise, real-time and continuous information about the carbon dioxide levels in their bioreactor. This gives
biopharma companies the first cost-effective way of monitoring this key parameter, an important way to
improve yield.

On the industrial side, we are launching new versions of FormWeigh, our formulation software, and FreeWeigh,
our statistical quality control software. We also introduced a new line of industrial scales, Xpress, manufac-
tured in China for companies with basic application needs — a market where we have little presence but see big
opportunity. We are marketing Xpress with a cost-effective distribution system, where orders and inquiries

are handled strictly via the web. Our product inspection business has been revamping its product line and, in
2005, we will introduce the most significant line of new products for this sector in many vears.

In our food retailing business, we extended our offering with price-labeling equipment targeted toward the
European pre-pack market, a new market for us. This equipment shares the same platform as our UC scales,
with integration benefits for our customers and R&D and manufacturing synergies for us.

Another area of exciting growth for us is China. China is a sizable market, its economy is rapidly growing, and
U.S. and European manufacturers continue to shift production to this region to gain cost advantages. Our
growth in China exceeded 20 percent in 2004, due largely to continued capacity spending. While we recognize
that our growth will not always remain at this high level, we are convinced of China’s long-term potential. As
we look to the future, particular areas of opportunity are product inspectior, as producers and consumers shift
to packaged foods and need to ensure food safety, and retail, as food retailers expand their operations.

Featuring many techno-
logical advances, the

XP analytical balance
offers chemists greater
accuracy, improved speed
and easier operation.




P! Aleading food sfore in China uses more
¥ than B0 of our networked scales to enhance
the management of its fresh goods.

Furthermore, as China’s export market continues to grow rapidly, domestic manufacturers will need to adhere to global quality
standards, and they can rely on our products to help them do so. In accordance, we are broadening our product offering for
our multinational and domestic Chinese customers.

Yet another area of growth potential is service, which represents more than 20 percent of sales and is a critical element in
reinforcing our customer relationships. We are expanding remote service capabilities in our products and continuing to
expand our value-added services. As an example of the latter, we introduced IPAC, an initial qualification package we are
selling with our new balances, which assures customers of the compliance, traceability and accuracy of data from the time
of installation. In addition to the field automation tools that are part of the Spinnaker project, we continue to enhance pro-
ductivity and profitability by sharing best practices and techniques in areas such as marketing communication and pricing,

Finally, service is becoming increasingly important in emerging markets. In Asia, we are building our service base by adding
service managers and providing them with service training programs. We are actively making service an integrated part of our
solutions offering in this high-potential area.

To complement these growth initiatives, we are working to reduce eur cest struciure and increase our working capital efficiency.

We are successfully shifting more manufacturing and sourcing to China, which brings us significant cost advantages. We see
these benefits multiplying, thanks to our highly capable management team and our long history in the region.

As part of our broad efforts to consolidate our manufacturing base, we closed a small manufacturing facility in Chicago. During
the year, we also exited certain strategically unimportant product lines, such as our third-party electronics and select drug
discovery and product inspection instruments.

Also on the cost front, we have made much progress in our procurement efforts over the past few years. Indeed, in 2004,
our procurement savings enabled us to mitigate factors such as higher steel costs. In terms of working capital management,
we recently expanded the role of our global procurement team to focus on the entire supply chain. With the globalization

of our supply chain, we are taking actions to streamline our processes to improve invested capital efficiency while maintaining
our high standards of customer service. We have started to see results through improved inventory turns and expect further
progress in the coming years.

Strengthening Corporate Governance

As part of the increasing demands on public companies, we completed the implementation of Sarbanes-Oxley legislation (SOX),
which requires that all U.S. public companies document that they have effective internal controls surrounding the preparation
of their financial results. The Board of Directors, our senior management team and I take the issue of corporate governance
very seriously. We believe our processes have historically been rigorous and well controlled, and we will continue to give it the
highest level of attention.

As many of vou know, we underwent an independent investigation during the vear following allegations made by an employee
about certain Company processes. After the independent investigators completed their review, the Board of Directors found

no need to change any of our previously filed financial statements. However, this thorough examination did highlight several
areas we wish to reinforce for our own benefit, including the need to strengthen our corporate financial team. We initiated
this process last year and will continue to devote necessary resources to this important area. We are absolutely determined to
ensure our procedures are consistent with our commitment to maintaining strong corporate governance.




Achieving Good Financial Results

As 1 mentioned, improved customer spending levels and good execution of our plans came together to produce
solid financial performance in 2004.

Sales in 2004 reached $1.4 billion, which represented an 8 percent increase over 2003, This increase is comprised
of 3 percent local currency sales growth and 5 percent currency benefit. Local currency sales growth, which is
sales growth at constant currency rates, is the most important driver for operating profit. By geography, local cur-
rency sales growth was 2 percent in the Americas and 15 percent in Asta and Other while it was constant in Europe.
We achieved our sales target even as we exited certain non-strategic product lines over the year.

Gross margins were up strongly to 48.6 percent, an increase of 120 basis points over the prior year, reflecting
many of the initiatives we have had in place to improve our cost structure as well as provide more value in our
solutions. Adjusted operating income was $179.4 million and included $5.0 million of investigation costs. This
compares with $161.9 million in 2003, which included $5.4 million of restructuring costs,

Net earnings per share were $2.37, compared with $2.11 in 2003, an increase of 12 percent. The 2004 amount
includes $0.08 per share of investigation costs, and the 2003 amount includes $0.08 of restructuring costs.

Our steadily increasing cash flow continues to be a great success story for us. Our net cash flow from operations
reached $166 million, enabling us to spend just over $100 million on share repurchases and $60 million to
reduce our net debt. Qur capital structure gives us ample financial flexibility to continue to repurchase shares as
well as pursue acquisitions.

Focusing on Operational Excellence

As we ook ahead, the economy, as always, remains a variable. However, recent signs are positive. Our sales growth
trend is improving as our customers’ buying patterns strengthen. We are cautiously optimistic these trends will
continue. Though we can't control the economy, we can effectively execute on our plans.

As vou can see, we have put in place powerful initiatives to improve growth in 2005 and beyond and deliver opera-
tional excellence. We are excited about the significant potential of our new products and our new global sales,
service and marketing programs. We expect further benefits from our cost-savings initiatives and our Chinese
manufacturing and sourcing strategy. Now that these initiatives have taken root in our organization, we will
focus on executing them with excellence. What's more, we are fortunate to be growing from a position of leader-
ship — with 2 fundamentally strong core business and record of solid operating performance.

For upholding our strengths and developing innovative ways to build on them, we thank our many talented and
dedicated emplovees. And, for always motivating us to do our best, we thank our loyal customers. We also offer

our thanks to our investors who continue to give us vital support and confidence. We look forward to realizing the
kind of growth that will make all of us proud.

Sincerely,

Robert F Spoerry / /

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

February 25, 2005
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DISCLAIMER

Some of the statements in this annual report and in documenis incorporaled by reference constifute “forward-
fooking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the
U.S. Securifies Exchange Act of 1934. These statements relafe fo future evenis or our future financial performance,
including, but not limited to, strategic pians, pofential growth opportunities in both developed markets and emerging
markets, impact of inflation, currency and interest rate fluctuations, planned research and development efforts,
product infroductions and innovation, manufacturing capacity, adequacy of facilities, expected customer demand,
meeting cusfomer expectations, planned operafional changes and productivity improvements, research and devefop-
ment expenditures, competitors’ product development, expecfed capital expenditures, future cash sources and
requirements, liquidity, impact of long ferm incentive plans, expected pension contributions and payments, impact of
faxes, expected compliance with laws, changes in law and regulations, impact of environmental cosls, expected
frading volume and value of stocks and options, expected cost savings, impact of litigation, benefits and other effects
of completed or future acquisitions, which involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may
cause our or our businesses” actual resuls, levels of activity, performance or achievements fo be materially different
from those expressed or implied by any forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identity forward-fooking
statements by ferminology such as “may,” “will,” “could,” “would,” “should,” “expect” “plan,” “anticipafe,”
“infend,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential” or “continue” or the negative of those terms or other compara-
ble terminology. These statemenis are only predictions. Actual evenfs or results may differ materially because of
market conditions in our indusfries or other factors. Moreover, we do not, nor does any other person, assume
responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of those statements. Unfess otherwise required by applicable laws,
we disclaim any intention or obligation 1o publicly update or revise any of the forward-looking statements after the
date of this annual report fo conform them o actual resulis, whether as a result of new information, fufure events, or
otherwise. All of the forward-looking statements are qualified in their enfirefy by reference to the factors discussed
under the captions “Factors affecting our future operating results” in the “Business” and “Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operafions” sections of this annual report, which describe risks
and factors that could cause results to differ materially from those projected in those forward-looking statements.

We caution the reader that the above list of risks and factors that may affect resulfs addressed in the forward-
looking statements may not be exhaustive. Other sections of this annual report and other documents incorporated by
reference may describe additional risks or factors that could odversely impact our busingss and financial perform-
ance. We operate in a continually changing business environment, and new risk factors emerge from time fo fime.
Management cannot predict these new risk factors, nor can it assess the impact, if any, of these new risk factors on
our businesses or the extent fo which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual resulls to differ
materially from those projected in any forward-looking statements. Accordingly, forward-looking statements should
not be relied upon as a prediction of actual resulfs.
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item 1. Business

We are a teading global supplier of precision instruments and services. We are the world’s largest manufacturer
of weighing instruments for use in laboratory, industrial, packaging, logistics and food retailing applications. We also
hold top-three market positions in several related analytical instruments, and are a leading provider of auiomated
chemistry systems used in drug and chemical compound discovery and development. In addition, we are the world’s
fargest manufacturer and marketer of metal detection and other end-of-line inspection systems used in production
and packaging, and hold a leading position in certain process analytics applications.

Our business is geographically diversified, with sales in 2004 derived 43% from Europe, 40% from North and
South America and 17% from Asia and other countries. Our customer base is aiso diversified by indusiry and by
individual customer.

Mettler-Toledo International Inc. was incorporated as a Delaware corporation in 1991 and became a publicly
traded company with its initial public offering in November 1997. In November 2001, we acquired Rainin
Instrument, a leading manufacturer of pipetting solutions used in pharmaceutical, biotech and medical research
applications.

Business Segments

We have six reportable segments: Principal U.S. Operations, Other Western European Operations, Principal
Central European Operations, Swiss R&D and Manufacturing Operations, Asia and Other. See Note 16 1o the audited
consolidated financia! statements and Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations under “Results of Operations — by Operating Segment” for detailed results by segment and
geographic region.

We manufacture @ wide variety of precision instruments and provide value-added services to our customers. Our
principal products and principal services are set forth below. Given the inherently global nature of our business, the
following description of our products, customers and distribution, sales and services, research and development,
manufacturing and other elemenis of our business apply, for the most part, to each of our segments. In some
instances particular products are targeted for particular segments but none of these are material in nature 1o the entire
business or an individual segment.

Laboratory Instruments

We make a wide variety of precision laboratory instruments, including laboratory balances, pipettes, fitrators,
thermal analysis systems and other analytical instruments. The laboratory instruments business accounted for
approximately 45% of our net sales in 2004.

Laboratory Balances

Our laboratory balances have weighing ranges from one ten-millionth of a gram up to 32 kilograms. To cover o
wide range of customer needs and price points, we market our balances in a range of product tiers offering different
levels of functionality. Based on the same technology platform, we also manufacture mass comparators, which are
used by weights and measures regulators as well as laboratories fo ensure the accuracy of reference weights.

In addition to Mefiler-Toledo branded products, we manufacture and sell balances under the brand name
“Ohaus.” Ohaus branded products principally target the educational market and other markets in which customers
are interested in lower cost, a more limited set of features and less comprehensive support and service.

Pipettes

Pipettes are used in laboratories for dispensing small volumes of liquids. In late 2001, we acquired Rainin
Instrument, a premier provider of pipefting solutions based in California. Rainin develops, manufactures and
distributes advanced pipettes, tips and accessories, including single- and multi-channel manual and electronic
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pipettes. Rainin maintains service centers in the key markets where customers periodically send in their pipettes for
certified recalibrations. Rainin’s principal end markets are pharmaceutical, biotech, clinical and academia.

Titrators

Titrators measure the chemical composition of samples and are used in laboratories as well as the food and
beverage and other industries. Our high-end titrators are multi-tasking models, which can perform two determinations
simultaneously on multiple vessels. Our offering includes robotics fo automate routine work in quality control
applications.

Thermal Analysis Sysfems

Thermal analysis systems measure material properties as a function of femperature, such as weight, dimension,
energy flow and viscoelastic properties. Thermal analysis systems are used in nearly every industry, but primarily in
the plastics and polymer industries and increasingly in the pharmaceuticat industry.

Other Analytical instruments

pH meters measure acidity in laboratory samples. We also sell density and refractomefry instruments, which
measure chemical concentrations in solutions. In addition, we manufacture and sell moisture analyzers, which
precisely defermine the moisture content of a sample by utilizing an infrared dryer to evaporate moisture.

Laboratory Sofiware

LabX, our PC-based laboratory soffware platform, manages and analyzes data generated by our titrators and
balances. LabX provides full network capability, has efficient, intuitive protocols, and enables customers to collect
and archive data in compliance with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration’s traceability requirements for electroni-
cally stored data (also known as 21 CFR Part 11). We plan fo expand LabX to inciude other laboratory instruments.

Automated Chemistry Solutions

Our current drug discovery offerings are focused on key aspects of process development, as well as on
identification of leads and optimization of those leads. Our automated lab reactors and reaction calorimeters are
integral fo the process research and development and scale-up activities of our customers. We offer a range of
technologies including automated synthesizers to support chemists working on lead identification and optimization,
automated workstations that support the synthesis process, and systems for cleaning up and purifying synthesis
products. In addition, we allow customers to monitor the reaction and crystallization processes with on-line measure-
ment technologies based on infrared and laser light. We believe that our porffolio of integrated technologies can bring
significant efficiencies to the drug discovery process, enabling our customers to create larger numbers of higher
quality candidate compounds and bring them to market faster.

Process Analytics

Our process analytics business provides instruments for the in-fine measurement of liquid parameters used
primarily in the production process of pharmaceutical, biotech, beverage, microelectronics, and chemical compa-
nies. About half of our process analytics sales are to the pharmaceutical and biotech markets, where our customers
need fast and secure scale-up and production that meets the validation processes required for GMP (Good Manufac-
turing Processes) and other regulatory standards. We are a leading solution provider for liquid analytical measure-
ment to control and optimize production processes. Our solutions include sensor technology for pH, dissolved
oxygen, CO,, conductivity, turbidity and TOC and automated systems for calibration and cleaning of measurement
points. Our instruments offer leading multi-parameter capabilities and plant-wide control system integration, which
are key for integrated measurement of multiple parameters to secure production quality and efficiency. With a
worldwide network of specialists, we support customers in critical process applications, compliance and systems
integration questions.



Industrial Instiruments

We manufacture numerous industrial weighing instruments and related terminals and we offer dedicated
software solutions for the chemical, pharmaceutical and food industries. We supply automatic identification and data
capture solutions, which integrate in-motion weighing, dimensioning and idenfification technologies for transport,
shipping and logistics customers. We also offer heavy industrial scales and related software. The industrial instru-
ments business accounted for approximately 42% of our net sales in 2004.

Industrial Weighing Instruments

We offer a comprehensive line of industrial scales and balances, such as bench scales and floor scales, for
weighing loads from a few grams to several thousand kilograms in applications ranging from measuring materiais in
chemical production fo weighing mail and packages. Our products are used in a wide range of applications, such as
counting applications and in formulating and mixing ingredients.

Industrial Terminals

Our industrial scale terminals integrate collected data and control and automate manufacturing processes. They
allow users to remotely downioad programs or access setup data and can minimize down time through predictive
rather than reactive maintenance.

Transportation/Shipping and Logistics

We are a leading global supplier of automatic identification and data capture solutions, which integrate in-
motion weighing, dimensioning and identification technologies. With these solutions, customers can measure the
weight and cubic volume of packages for appropriate billing, logistics and quality control. Our solutions also integrate
into customers’ information systems.

Vehicle Scale Systems

Our primary heavy industrial products are scales for weighing frucks or railcars (i.e., weighing bulk goods as
they enter or leave a factory or at a toll station). Heavy industrial scales are capable of measuring weighis up to 500
tons and permit accurate weighing under extreme environmental conditions. We also offer advanced computer
software, including, that can be used with our heavy industrial scales to facilitate a broad range of customer solutions
and provides a complete system for managing vehicle transaction processing.

Industrial Soﬂware

We offer a wide range of software that can be used with our industrial instruments. Examples include
FreeWeigh.net, a statistical quality control software, Formweigh, our formulation/batching software, and OverDrive.
FreeWeigh.net and Formweigh provide full network capability and enable customers to collect and archive data in
compliance with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration’s traceability requirements for electronically stored data
(21 CFR part 11). In addition, our Q.i365 software controls batching processes by monitoring the material transfer
control process. Q.i365 also provides stafistical, diagnostic and operational information for asset management,
process control and database applications.

Product Inspection

Increasing safety and consumer protfection requirements are driving the need for more and more sophisticated
end-of-line inspection systems (e.g., for use in food processing and packaging, and pharmaceutical and other
industries). We are the world’s leading provider of metal detectors, x-ray visioning equipment and checkweighers that
are used in these industries. Metal detectors are most commonly used to detect fine particles of metal that may be
confained in raw materials or may be generated by the manufacturing process itself. X-ray-based vision inspection
helps detect non-metallic contamination, such as glass, stones and pits, which enfer the manufacturing process for
similar reasons. Our x-ray systems can defect metfal in metallized containers and can be used for mass control. Both
X-ray and metal detection systems may be used together with checkweighers as components of infegrafed packaging
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lines. Checkweighers are used to control the filling content of packaged goods such as food, pharmaceuticals and
cosmetics. FreeWeigh.net is our statistical and quality control software that optimizes package filling, monitors
weight-related data and integrates it in real time into customers” enterprise resource planning and/or process control
systems.

Retail Weighing Solutions

Supermarkets, hypermarkets and other food retail organizations make use of multiple weighing applications for
handling fresh goods (such as meats, vegetabies, fruits and cheeses). We offer stand-alone scales for basic counter
weighing and pricing, price finding and prinfing. In addition, we offer network scales and soffware, which can
integrate backroom, counter, self-service and checkout functions and can incorporate weighing data into a supermar-
ket's overall fresh goods management system. Customer benefits are in the areas of pricing, merchandising, inventory
management, and regulatory compliance. The retail business accounted for approximately 13% of our net sales in
2004.

Retail Soffware

Our subsidiary SofTechnics provides retail software for in-store item and inventory management solutions.
SofTechnics’ offering complements our solutions to food retailers. Its soffware provides the full scope of real-time item
management, thereby atiowing retailers to match local store inventory levels with local customer demand. As our
traditional retail weighing business become more focused on information technology, the opportunity to crass-sell
SofTechnics’ software and services expands. We have begun to introduce SofTechnics software for the improved
management of fresh goods and plan to sell more integrated data management solutions for fresh goods now and in
the future.

Customers and Distribution

Our principal customers include companies in the following key end markets: the life science industry (pharma-
ceutical and biotech companies, as well as independent research organizations); food producers; food retailers; the
beverage industry; specialty chemicals and cosmetics companies; the transportation and logistics industry; the metals
industry; the electronics industry; and the academic market.

Our products are sold through o variety of distiibution channels. Generally, more fechnically sophisticated
products are sold through our direct sales force, while less complicated products are sold through indirect channels,
Our sales through direct channels exceed our sales through indirect channels. A significant portion of our sales in the
Americas is generated through the indirect channels. We have a diversified customer base, with no single customer
accounting for more than 2% of 2004 net sales.

Sales and Service
Market Orgonizations

We maintain geographically focused market organizations around the world that are responsible for all aspects
of our sales and service. The market organizations are local marketing and service organizations designed 1o
maintain close relationships with our customers. Each market organization has the flexibility to adapt its marketing
and service efforts to account for different cultural and economic conditions. Market organizations also work closely
with our producing organizations (described below) by providing feedback on manufacturing and product develop-
ment initiatives and relaying new product and application ideas.

We have one of the largest and broadest global sales and service organizations among precision instrument
manufacturers. At December 31, 2004, our sales and services group consisted of over 4,500 employees in sales,
marketing and customer service (including related administration) and post-sales fechnical service, located in 37
countries. This field organization has the capability fo provide service and support to our customers and distributors in
major markets across the globe. This is important because our customers are seeking to do more and more business
with a consistent giobal approach.




Service

We have expanded our service business from one centered on calibration, repair and maintenance fo one driven
by regulatory compliance and other value-added services, which we call Service XXL. We have a unique offering to
our pharmaceutical customers in assuring that our instruments are used in compliance with FDA regulations and we
can provide these services regardless of the customer’s location throughout the world. This global service network
also is an important factor in our ability to expand in emerging markets. We estimate that we have the largest
installed base of weighing instruments in the world. in 2004, service (representing service contracts, repairs and
replacement parts) accounted for approximately 23% of our fotal net sales. A significant portion of this amount is
derived from replacement paris.

Beyond revenue opportunities, we believe service is a key part of our solution offering and helps significantly in
customer retention. The close relationships and frequent contact with our large customer base provides us with sales
opporunities and innovative product and application ideas.

Research and Development and Manufacturing
Producing Organizations

Our research, product development and manufacturing efforts are organized into a number of producing
organizations which specialize in specific products on a global basis. Our focused producing organizations help
reduce product development time and costs, improve customer focus and maintain technological leadership. The
producing organizations work together to share ideas and best practices, and there is a close interface and
coordinated customer interaction among marketing organizations and producing organizafions.

Research and Development

We infend to continue fo invest in product innovation in order to provide technologically advanced products to
our customers for existing and new applications. Over the last three years, we have invested $231.8 million in
research and development ($83.2 million in 2004, $78.0 million in 2003, and $70.6 million in 2002). In 2004,
we spent approximately 5.9% of net sales on research and development. Our research and development efforts fall
info two categories:

« fechnoiogy advancements, which increase the vaiue of our products. These advancements may be in the
form of enhanced functionality, new applications for our fechnologies, more accurate or reliable measure-
ment, additional software capability or automation through robotics or other means, and

« cost reductions, which reduce the manufacturing cost of our products through better overall design.

We have devoted an increasing proportion of our research and deveiopment budget fo software development.
This includes software to process the signals captured by the sensors of our instruments, application-specific software,
and soffware that connects our solutions into customers’ IT systems. We closely integrate research and development
with marketing, manufacturing and product engineering. We have over 800 employees in research and development
and product engineering.

Manufacturing

We are a worldwide manufacturer, with facilities principally in the United States, Switzerland, Germany, the
United Kingdom and China. Laboratory instruments are produced mainly in Switzerland and to a lesser extent in the
United States and China, while our remaining products are produced worldwide. We emphasize product quality in our
manufacturing operations, and most of our products require very strict tolerances and exact specifications. We use an
extensive quality control system that is integrated into each step of the manufacturing process. All major manufaciur-
ing facilities have achieved 1SO 9001 certification. We believe that our manufacturing capacity is sufficient fo meet
our present and currently anticipated needs.

We generally manufacture only critical components ourselves, usually components that contain proprietary
technology. When outside manufacturing is more efficient, we contract with others for certain components. We use a
wide range of suppliers. We believe our supply arrangements 1o be adequate and that there are no material
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constraints on the sources and availability of materials. From time to time we rely on a single supplier for all of our
requirements of a particular component. Supply arrangements for electronics are generally made globally.

Backlog; Seasonality

Our manufacturing furnaround time is generally sufficiently short so as fo permit us to manufacture to fill orders
for most of our producis, which helps to limit inventory costs. Backlog is therefore generally a function of requested
customer delivery dates and is typically no longer than one to two months.

Our business has historically experienced a slight amount of seasonal variation, particularly the high-end
laboratory instruments business. Traditionally, sales in the first quarter are slightly lower than, and sales in the fourth
quarter are slightly higher than, sales in the second and third quarters. Fourth quarter sales have historically generated
approximately 27-28% of our sales. This trend has a somewhat greater effect on income from operations than on net
sales because fixed costs are spread evenly across ali quarters.

Employees

As of December 31, 2004, we had approximately 8,700 employees throughout the world, including approxi-
mately 4,100 in Europe, 3,000 in North and South America, and 1,800 in Asig and other countries.

We Dbelieve our employee relations are good, and we have not suffered any material employee work stoppage or
strike during the last five years, except for a strike in early 2003 at our Bethune, France facility, which has been
closed. Labor unions do not represent a meaningful number of our employees.

Inteilectual Property

We hold over 1,700 patents and frademarks, primarily in the United States, Switzerland, Germany, the United
Kingdom, France, Japan and China. Our products generally incorporate a wide variety of fechnological innovations,
some of which are protected by patents of various durations. Products are generally not protected as a whole by
individual pafents, and as a result, no one patent or group of related patents is material to our business. We have
numerous trademarks, including the Meftler-Toledo name and logo, which are material to our business. We regularly
profect against infringement of our intellectual property.

Regulation

Our products are subject to various regulatory standards and approvals by weights and measures regulatory
authorities. All of our electrical components are subject o electrical safety standards. We believe that we are in
compliance in all material respects with applicable reguiations.

Approvals are required fo ensure our instruments do not impermissibly influence other instruments, and are
themselves not affected by other instruments. In addifion, some of our products are used in “legal for frade”
applications, in which prices based on weight are calculated, and for which specific weights and measures approvals
are required. Although there are a large number of regulatory agencies across our markets, there is an increasing
trend toward harmonization of standards, and weights and measures regulafion is harmonized across the European
Union.

Our products may also be subject to special requirements depending on the end-user and market. For example,
laboratory customers are typically subject to Good Laboratory Practices (GLP), industrial customers to Good
Manufacturing Practices (GMP), pharmaceutical customers to U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) regulafions,
and customers in food processing indusiries may be subject to Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point
(HACCP) regulations. Products used in hazardous environments may also be subject fo special requirements.

Environmental Matiers

We are subject to environmenta! laws and regulations in the jurisdictions in which we operate. We own or lease
a number of properties and manufacturing facilities around the world. Like many of our competitors, we have
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incurred, and will continue to incur, capital and operating expenditures and other costs in complying with such laws
and regulations in both the United States and abroad.

We are currently involved in, or have potential liability with respect to, the remediation of past contamination in
certain of our facilities in both the United States and abroad. Our subsidiary Hi-Speed Checkweigher Co., Inc. ("Hi-
Speed”) is one of two private parties ordered to perform certain remedial actions under an administrative consent
order that the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection ("NJDEP") signed on June 13, 1988 with respect
to certain property in Landing, New Jersey. GEI Infernational Corporation (“GEI”) is the other ordered party. GEl has
failed to fulfil all its obligations under the NJDEP order, and Hi-Speed has recenily entered into discussions with the
NJDEP about the next steps 1o be undertaken as a result. NJDEP has agreed with Hi-Speed that the residual
contaminants can be addressed through the establishment of a Classification Exception Area and concurrent Well
Restriction Area for the site. The NJDEP does not view these vehicles as remedial measures, but rather as “institutional
controls” that must be adequately maintained and periodically evaluated. We estimate that the costs of compliance
associated with the site will be approximately $0.3 million over the next seven years.

In addition, certain of our present and former facilities have or had been in operation for many decades and,
over such time, some of these facilities may have used substances or generated and disposed of wastes which are or
may be considered hazardous. It is possible that these sites, as well as disposal sites owned by third parties to which
we have sent wastes, may in the future be identified and become the subject of remediation. Accordingly, although
we believe that we are in substantial compliance with applicable environmental requirements and to date we have
not incurred material expendifures in connection with environmental matters, it is possible that we could become
subject to material environmental liabilities in the future.

Competition

Our markets are highly competitive. Weighing and analytical instruments markets are fragmenied both geo-
graphically and by application, particularly the industrial and food retailing markets. As a result, we face numerous
regional or specialized competitors, many of which are well established in their markets. in addition, same of our
competitors are divisions of larger companies with potentially greater financial and other resources than our own.
Taken together, the competitive forces present in our markets can impair our operating margins in certain product
lines and geographic markets.

We expect our competitors to continue to improve the design and performance of their products and to introduce
new products with competitive prices. Although we believe that we have technological and other competitive
advantages over many of our competitors, we may not be able fo realize and maintain these advantages. These
advantages include our worldwide market leadership positions; our global brand and repuiation; our frack record of
technological innovation; our comprehensive, high-quality solution offering; our global sales and service offering; our
large installed base of weighing instruments; and the fact that our revenue base is diversified by geographic region,
product range and customer. To remain competfitive, we must continue 1o invest in research and development, sales
and marketing and customer service and support. We cannot be sure that we will have sufficient resources to
continue to make these investments or that we will be successful in identifying, developing and maintaining any
compelitive advantages.

We believe that the principal competitive factors in developed markets for purchasing decisions are the product
itself, application support, service support and price. In emerging markets, where there is greater demand for less
sophisticated products, price is a more important factor than in developed markets. Compefition in the U.S. laboratory
market is also influenced by the presence of large distributors that sell not only our products but those of our
competitors as well.




Factors affecting our future operating results

We have substantial debt and we may incur substantially more debt, which could affect our ability to meet
our debt obligations and may otherwise restrict our acfivities.

We have substantial debt and we may incur substantial additional debt in the future. As of December 31, 2004,
we had total indebtedness of approximately $136.0 million, net of cash of $67.2 million. We are aiso permitted by
the terms of our debt instruments fo incur substantial additional indebtedness, subject to the restrictions therein.

Our debt could have important consequences to you. For example, it could:
* make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations under our debt instruments;

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow 1o payments on our indebtedness, which wouid
reduce the amount of cash flow available to fund working capital, capital expenditures, product development
and other corporate requirements;

* increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and indusiry conditions, including changes in raw
material costs;

* limit our ability fo respond fo business opportunities;
< limit our ability to borrow additional funds, which may be necessary; and

= subject us to financial and other restrictive covenants, which, if we fail to comply with these covenants and
our failure is not waived or cured, could result in an event of default under our debt.

To service our debt, we will require a significant amount of cash. Our ability to generate cash depends on
many factors beyond our control.

Our ability to make payments on our debt and fo fund planned capital expenditures and research and
development efforts will depend on our ability to generate cash in the future. This, to an extent, is subject to general
economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors, including those described in this section,
that are beyond our control.

We cannot assure you that our business will genergte sufficient cash flow from operations or that future
borrowings will be available to us under our senior credit facility in an amount sufficient 1o enable us to pay our debt,
or to fund our other liquidity needs. We may need fo refinance all or a portion of our indebtedness on or before
maturity. We cannot assure you that we will be able 1o refinance any of our debt, including our senior credit facility
and the senior notes, on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

The agreements governing our debt impose restrictions on our business.

The indenture governing our senior notes and the agreemenis governing our senior credit facility contain a
number of covenants imposing significant restrictions on our business. These restrictions may affect our ability to
operate our business and may limit our ability 10 take advantage of potential business opportunities as they arise. The
restrictions these covenants piace on us and our restricted subsidiaries include limitations on our ability and the ability
of our restricted subsidiaries to:

= enter into sale and leaseback arrangements;

* incur liens; and

* consolidate, merge, sell or lease all or substantially all of our assets.
Our senior credit facility also requires us to meet several financial ratios.

Our ability fo comply with these agreements may be affected by events beyond our control, including prevailing
economic, financial and industry conditions, and are subject to the risks in this section. The breach of any of these
covenants or restrictions could result in a default under the indenture governing the senior nofes or under our senior
credit facility. An event of default under our senior credit facility would permit our lenders to declare all amounts
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borrowed from them to be immediately due and payable. Acceleration of our other indebtedness may cause us fo be
unable to make interest payments on the senior notes and repay the principal amount of the senior notes.

Currency fluctuations may affect our operating profits.

Because we conduct operations in many countries, our operating income can be significantly affected by
fluctuations in currency exchange rates. Swiss franc-denominated expenses represent a much greater percentage of
our operating expenses than Swiss franc-denominated sales represent of our net sales. In par, this is because most of
our manufacturing costs in Switzerland relafe to products that are sold outside Switzerland. Moreover, a substantial
percentage of our research and development expenses and general and administrative expenses are incurred in
Switzerland. Therefore, if the Swiss franc strengthens against all or most of our major trading currencies (e.g., the
U.S. dollar, the euro, other major European currencies and the Japanese yen), our operating profit is reduced. We
glso have significantly more sales in European currencies (other than the Swiss franc) than we have expenses in
those currencies. Therefore, when European currencies weaken against the U.S. dollar and the Swiss franc, it also
decreases our operating profits. Accordingly, the Swiss franc exchange rafe fo the euro is an important cross-rate
monitored by the Company. We estimate that a 1% strengthening of the Swiss franc against the euro wouid result in @
decrease in our earnings before tax of $0.9 million to $1.1 million on an annual basis. In addition to the effects of
exchange rate movements on operating profits, our debt levels can fluctuate due fo changes in exchange rafes,
particularly between the U.S. dollar and the Swiss franc. Based on our outstanding debt at December 31, 2004, we
estimate that a 10% weakening of the U.S. dollar against the currencies in which our debt is denominated would
result in an increase of approximately $2.8 million in the reported U.S. dollar value of the debt.

We are subject to certain risks associated with our international operations and fluctuating conditions in
emerging markefts.

We conduct business in many countries, including emerging markets in Asia, Latin America and Eastern Europe.
In addition to the currency risks discussed above, infernational operations pose other substantial risks and problems
for us. For instance, various local jurisdictions in which we operate may revise or alfer their respective legal and
regulatory requirements. In addition, we may encounter one or more of the following obstacles or risks:

* fariffs and trade barriers;

« difficulties in staffing and managing local operations, and/or mandatory salary increases for local employees;
« credit risks arising from financial difficulties facing local customers and distributors;

» difficulties in protecting infellectual property;

« nationalization of private enterprises;

* restrictions on investments and/or limitations regarding foreign ownership;

« adverse tax consequences, including imposition or increase of withholding and other taxes on remittances
and other payments by subsidiaries; and

* uncertdin local economic, political and social conditions, including hyper-inflationary conditions, or periods
of low or no productivity growth.

We must also comply with a variety of regulations regarding the conversion and repatriation of funds earned in
local currencies. For example, converting earnings from our operations in China into other currencies and repatriating
these funds require governmental approvals. if we cannot comply with these or other applicable regulations, we may
face increased difficulties in ufilizing cash flow generated by these operafions outside of China.

Economic conditions in emerging markets have from time to time deteriorated significantly, and some emerging
markets are experiencing recessionary frends, severe currency devaluations and inflationary prices. Moreover,
economic problems in individual markets can spread fo other economies, adding to the adverse condifions we face in
emerging markets. We remain committed to emerging markets, particularlty those in Asia, Lafin America and Eastern
Europe. However, we expect the fluctuating economic conditions will affect our results of operations in these markets
for the foreseeable future.
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We operate in highly competitive markets, and it may be difficult to preserve operating margins, gain market
share and maintain a technological advantage.

Our markets are highly competitive. Weighing and analytical instruments markets are aiso fragmented both
geographically and by application, paricularly .the industrial and food retailing markets. As a result, we face
numerous regional or specialized competitors, many of whom are well established in their markets. In addition, some
of our competitors are divisions of larger companies with potentially greater financial and other resources than our
company. Taken together, the competitive forces present in our markets can impair our operating margins in certain
product lines and geographic markets. We expect our competitors fo continue 1o improve the design and performance
of their products and to introduce new products with competitive prices. Although we believe that we have certain
fechnological and other advantages over our compefifors, we may not be able fo realize and maintain these
advantages.

Our product development efforts may not produce commercially viable products in a timely manner.

We must infroduce new products and enhancements in a timely manner, or our products could become
technologically obsotete over time, which would harm our operating results. To remain competitive, we must continue
to make significant investments in research and development, sales and marketing, and customer service and
support. We. cannot be sure that we will have sufficient resources fo continue to make these investments. In
developing new products, we may be required 1o make substantial investments before we can determine their
commercial viability. As a result, we may notf be successful in developing new products and we may never realize the
benefits of our research and development activities.

A prolonged downfurn or additional consaolidation in the pharmaceutical, food, food retfailing and chemicals
industries could adversely affect our operating results.

Our products are used extensively in the pharmaceutical, food and beverage and chemical industries. Consoli-
dation in the pharmaceutical and chemicals industries hurt our sales in prior years. A prolonged downturn or
additional consolidation in any of these industries could adversely affect our operating results. In addition, the capital
spending policies of our customers in these industries are bosed on a variety of factors we cannot control, including
the resources available for purchasing equipment, the spending priorities among various types of equipment and
policies regarding capital expenditures generaily. Any decrease or delay in capital spending by our customers would
cause our revenues fo decline and could harm our profitability.

We may face risks associated with future acquisitions.

We plan to pursue acquisitions of complementary product lines, technologies or businesses. Acquisitions involve
numerous risks, including:

= difficulties in the assimilafion of the acquired operations, technologies and products;

= diversion of management’s attention from other business concerms; and

= potential departures of key employees of the acquired company.

If we successfully identify acquisitions in the future, completing such acquisitions may resulf in:
* new issuances of our stock that may be dilutive to current owners;

= increases in our debt and confingent liabilities; and

* qadditional amortization expenses related 1o infangible assets.

Any of these acquisition-related risks could materially adversely affect our profitability.

Larger companies have identified life sciences and instruments as businesses they will consider entering, which
could change the competitive dynamics of these markets. In addition, we may not be able to identify, successfully
complete or integrate potential acquisitions in the.future. However, even if we can do so, we cannot be sure thaf these
acquisitions will have a positive impact on our business or operating resuits.
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If we cannof protect our infellectual properly rights, or if we infringe or misappropriate the proprietary rights
of others, our operating results could be harmed.

Our success depends on our ability to obtain and enforce patents on our technology and fo protfect our trade
secrets. Our patents may not provide complete protection, and competitors may develop similar products that are not
covered by our patents. Our patents may aiso be challenged by third parties and invalidated or narrowed. Although
we take measures o protect confidential information, improper use or disclosure of our trade secrets may still occur.

We may be sued for infringing on the infellectual property rights of others. The cost of any litigation could affect
our profitability regardless of the outcome, and management attention could be diverted. If we are unsuccessful in
such litigation, we may have to pay damages, stop the infringing activity and/or obtain a license. If we fail to obtain a
required license, we may be unable 1o sell some of our products, which could result in a decline in our revenues.

Departures of key employees could impair our operations.

We have employment contracts with each of our key employees. In addition, our key employees own shares of
our common stock and/or have options 10 purchase additional shares. Nevertheless, such individuals could leave the
Company. It any key employees stopped working for us, our operations could be harmed. We have no key man life
insurance policies with respect to any of our senior executives.

We may be adversely affected by environmental laws and regulations.
We are subject to various environmental laws and regulations, including those relating to:
* gir emissions;
« wastewater discharges;
« the handling and disposal of solid and hazardous wastes; and
« the remediation of confamination associated with the use and disposal of hazardous substances.

We incur capital and operating expenditures in complying with environmental laws and regulafions both in the
U.S. and abroad. We are currently involved in, or have potential liability with respect fo, the remediation of past
contamination in facilities both in the U.S. and abroad. In addition, some of these facilities have or had been in
operation for many decades and may have used substances or generated and disposed of wastes that are hazardous
or may be considered hazardous in the future. These sites and disposal sites owned by others fo which we sent waste
may in the future be identified as contaminated and require remediation. Accordingly, it is possible that we could
become subject fo additional environmental liabilities in the future that may harm our results of operations or financial
condition.

We may be adversely affected by failure to comply with requlations of governmental agencies.

Our products are subject to regulation by governmental agencies. These regulations govern a wide variety of
activities relating fo our products, from design and development, to labeling, manufacturing, promotion, sales and
distribution. If we fail fo comply with these regulations, we may have 1o recall products and cease their manufacture
and distribution. In addition, we could be subject to fines or criminal prosecution.

We may experience impairments of goodwill or other intangible assets.

Starting in 2002, our goodwill amortization charges have ceased. As at December 31, 2004, our consolidated
balance sheet included goodwill of $433.7 million and other intangible assets of $126.5 miliion.

Our business acquisitions typically result in goodwill and other intangible assels, which affect the amount of
future period amortization expense and possible impairment expense that we will incur. The determination of the
value of such intangible assets requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect our consolidated
financial statements.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142), our goodwill and
indefinite-lived infangible assets are not amortized, but are evaluated for impairment annually in the fourth quarter, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset might be impaired. The evaluation is
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based on valugtion models that estimate fair value based on expected future cash flows and profitability projections.
In preparing the valuation models we consider a number of factors, including operating results, business plans,
economic conditions, future cash flows, and transactions and market place data. There are inherent uncertainties
related to these factors and our judgment in applying them fo the impairment analyses. The significant estimates and
assumptions within our fair value models include sates growth, controllable cost growth, perpetual growth, effective
tax rates and discount rates. Our assessments to date have indicated that there has been no impairment of these
assefs.

Our drug discovery reporting unit is sensitive to changes in biopharma capital spending. We currently estimate
the fair value of the Company’s drug discovery reporting unit exceeds ifs carrying value of $34.2 million as of
December 31, 2004. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142, the Company monitors the fair value of this
reporting unit closely fo defermine if the business plans are being achieved. For example, we monitor whether the
forecasted henefits of our drug discovery cost reduction programs are being realized.

The Company’s intangible assets include a $19.9 million indefinite life intangible asset relating to an intellectual
property license. This license is currently subject to litigation with the grantor. While the Company believes its rights
under the license will be upheld, if they were not to be upheld, expected cash flows generated by the license would be
reduced and the related $19.9 million asset could be impaired, causing a non-cash charge of up to $14 million after
tax. Management does not believe this outcome or any other consequences of the case will have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

Should any of these estimates or assumptions in the preceding paragraphs not be accurate, or should we incur
lower than expected operating performance or cash flows, we may experience a friggering event that requires a new
fair value assessment for our reporting units, possibly prior 1o the required annual assessment. These types of events
and resulting analysis could resulf in impairment charges for goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets if the
fair value estimate declines below the carrying value.

Our amortization expense related to intangible assets with finite lives may materially change should our
estimates of their useful lives change.

Unanticipated changes in our fax rates or exposiure fo additional income tax liabllities could impact our
profitability.

We are subject fo income faxes in both the Unifed States and various other foreign jurisdictions, and our
domestic and international tax liabilities are subject to allocation of expenses among different jurisdictions. Our
effective tax rates could be adversely affected by:

 changes in the mix of earnings by jurisdiction;

» changes in tax laws or tax rates;

« changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities; and
+ material audit adjustments.

In particular, the carrying value of deferred tax assets, which are predominantly in the U.S., is dependent upon
our ability fo generate future taxable income in the U.S. In addition, the amount of income taxes we pay is subject fo
ongoing audits in various jurisdictions and a material assessment by a governing tax authority could affect our
profitability.

Company Website and Information

Our website can be found on the Internet at www.mt.com. The website confains information about us and our
operations. Copies of each of our filings with the SEC on Form 10-K, Form 10-Q and Form 8-K and all amendments
to those reports can be viewed and downloaded free of charge when they are filed with the SEC by accessing
www.mi.com, clicking on Invesfor Relations and then clicking on SEC Filings.
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Our website also contains copies of the following documents that can be downloaded free of charge:

« Corporate Governance Guidelines

Audit Committee Charter

» Compensation Committee Charter

Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitiee Charter

Code of Conduct

Any of the above documents, and any of our reports on Form 10-K, Form 10-Q and Form 8-K and all
amendments fo those reports, can also be obfained in print by sending a written request to our Investor Relations
Department:

Investor Relations
Mettler-Toledo International Inc.
1900 Polaris Parkway
Columbus, OH 43240

USA

Phone: +1 614 438 4748
Fax: +1 614 438 4646
E-mail: mary.finnegan@mt.com

CEO and CFO Cenrtifications

Our CEO submits an annual wriften affirmation to the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) certifying the company’s
compliance with NYSE listing rules. The most recent annual offirmation was submitted in 2004.

Our CEO and CFO ailso provide cerifications pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 in
connection with our quarterly and annual financial statement filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
The cedtifications reiating to this annual report are attached as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2.

item 2. Properties

The following table lists our principal facilities, indicating the location and whether the facility is owned or
leased. Our Greifensee, Switzerland facility also serves as our worldwide headquarters and our Columbus, Ohio

15




facility serves as our North American headquarters. We believe our facilities are adequate for our current and

reasonably anticipated future needs.
Locatlon

Europe:
Greifensee/Nanikon, Switzerland ... ... ...
Uznach, Switzerland . . ... .......... ...
Urdorf, Switzerlond .. .............. ...
Schwerzenbach, Switzerland ........ ...
Albstadt, Germany. . ............... ...
Giessen, Germany .. ..................
Manchester, England .................
Oslo, Norway .......................

Americas:
Columbus, Ohio . ....................
Worthington, Ohio. ... ...............
Oakland, California. .. ................
thaca, New York .................. ..
Woburn, Massachusefts ...............
Tampa, Florida . .................. ...

Other:
Shanghai, China .. ................ ...
Changzhou, China (two facilities) .... ...

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Owned/Leased

Owned
Owned
Owned
Leased
Owned
Owned
Leased
Leased

Leased
Owned
Leased
Owned
Leased
Leased

Building Owned; Land Leased
Buildings Owned; Land Leased

Business Segment

Swiss R&D and Manufacturing Operations
Swiss R&D and Manufacturing Operations
Swiss R&D and Manufacturing Operations
Swiss R&D and Manufacturing Operations
Principal Central European Operafions
Principal Central European Operations
Other Western European Operations

Other Western European Operations

Principal U.S. Operations
Principal U.S. Operations
Principal U.S. Operations
Principal U.S. Operations
Principal U.S. Operations
Other

Asia
Asia

We are not currently involved in any legal proceeding which we believe could have a material adverse effect
upon our financial condition or results of operations. See the disclosure above under “Environmentai Matters”.

ltem 4. Submission of Mafters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2004,

Executive Officers of the Registrant

See Part Hll, Item 10 of this annual report for information about our executive officers.
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PART Il

ltem 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Market Information for Common Stock

Our common stock is-traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “MTD”. The following table sefs
forth on a per share basis the high and low sales prices for consolidated frading in our common stock as reported on
the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape for the quarters indicated.

Common Stock

Price Range
High Low

2004

Fourth Quarter . ... .. . . $51.97 $46.51

Third QUaRer .. ... $49.15 $40.50

Second QUARET .. ... . . $49.58 $43.70 -

Fitst QUAMer ... $46.46  $540.67
2003

Fourth Quarter ... ... ... . $42,73 $36.06

TRITd QUORET . . $39.75 $34.60

Second QUARET . ... ... . . $38.00 $29.82

Fitst Quamer . ... .. $34.12 $28.90

Holders

At February' 1, 2005 there were 142 holders of record of common stock and 43,268,039 shares of common
stock outstanding. We estimate we have approximately 15,000 beneficial owners of common stock held in street
name.

Dividend Policy

Historically we have not paid dividends on our common stock. However, we will evalugte this policy on a
periodic basis faking into account our results of operations, financial condition, capital requirements, including
potential acquisitions, our share buyback program, the taxation of dividends to our shareholders, and other factors
deemed relevant by our Board of Directors.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

Equity Compensation Plan Information as of December 31, 2004
Weighted-Average Number of Securities Remaining

Number of Securities to be Exercise Price of Available for Future Issuance
Issued upon Exercise of Outstanding under Equity Compensation Plans
Outstanding Options, Options, Warrants (Excluding Securities Reflected in
Plan Category Warrants and Rights and Rights Column (a))
() (b (©)

Equity compensation

plans approved by

security holders . . . ... 4,965,954 $32.02 3,128,200
Equity compensation

plans not approved by

security holders . . . . .. — — —

Total................. 4,965,954 $32.02 3,128,200
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We do not have any equilty compensatfion plans that have not been approved by our sharehoiders that are
required fo be disclosed in this annual report on Form 10-K or our proxy statement.

Further details in relation to our stock option plan are given in Note 11 to the audited consolidated financial
statements included herein.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securifies

Total (F:I:amber (d)
(a) of Shares NMaximum Number
Total (b) Purchased as Pari  (or Approximate Dollar
Number of Average of Publicly Value) of Shares that May

Shares Price Paid Announced Plans  yet be Purchased under
Period Purchased per Share or Programs the Plans or Programs
October 1, to October 31, 2004 ........ — — - $ 39,905
November 1 to November 30, 2004 .... 325,000 $50.02 325,000 $223,638
December 1 to December 31, 2004 . .. .. 534,100 $51.32 534,100 $196,211
Total ... . 859,100 $50.83 859,100 $196,211

The Company has only one share repurchase program. Under this program, announced on February 5, 2004
and November 4, 2004, the Company is authorized to buy back up to $100 million of equity shares over the two-
year period ending December 31, 2005, and an additional $200 million of equity shares over the two-year period
ending December 31, 2006.

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2004 the Company spent $103.8 million on the repurchase of
2,208,500 shares at an average price of $46.97.

item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected historical financial information set forth below at December 31 and for the years then ended is
derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The financial information presented below, in thousands
except share data, was prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America ("U.S. GAAP™).

2004(a) 2003(a) 2002(a) 2001(a) 2000
Statement of Operations Data:

Netsales . ... $ 1,404,454 $ 1,304,431 §$ 1,213,707 $ 1,148,022 $ 1,095,547
Costofsales......................coviiii.. 722,047 686,255 645,970 619,140 600,185
Gross profit .. ... 682,407 618,176 567,737 528,882 495,362
Research and development . ..................... 83,217 78,003 70,625 64,627 56,334
Selling, general and administrative ................ 419,780 372,822 331,959 299,19 296,187
Amortization (b) ........... .o 12,256 11,724 9,332 14,114 11,564
Inferest eXpense ................oiiiiiiiiin.. 12,888 14,153 17,209 17,162 20,034
Other charges, net (€) ......... ... iiiiionoL, 42 4,563 28,202 15,354 2,614
Eamnings before faxes and minority inferest .. ........ 154,224 136,911 110,410 118,434 108,629
Provision forfaxes .................. ... ... ..., 46,267 41,073 9,989(d) 46,170 38,510
Neteamings ........ ..., $ 107,957 $§ 95838 $ 100421 § 72264 S 70,119
Basic earnings per common share:

Neteamings ..............cviiiiiininin, $ 244§ 215 § 2.27 $ 1.78 § 1.80

Weighted average number of common shares .. ... 44,237,214 44,473,913 44,280,605 40,609,716 38,897,879
Diluted earnings per common share:

Neteamings .................coiiuiinenn.n.. $ 237 $ 211§ 2.21 $ 168 $ 1.66

Weighted average number of common shares . . ... 45,483,969 45,508,847 45,370,053 42,978,895 42,141,548

Footnotes on following page
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2004(a) 2003(a) 2002(a) 2001(a) 2000

Balance Sheet Data:

)
©

@
®
®
@

Cash and cash equivalents . ..................... $ 67176 § 45116 § 31,427 S 2772 § 21,725

Working capital (&) ................... ... ..., 143,848 150,789 127,214 106,689 103,021

Totalassets . . ... v 1,480,072 1,387,276 1,303,393 1,189,412 887,582

Long-termdebt ....... ... ... ... ..l 196,290 223,239 262,093 309,479 237,807

Other non-current liabilities () . ................... 132,723 135,613 133,600 119,109 95,843

Shareholders’ equity (@) . ............... ... ... 720,886 653,996 502,386 388,184 178,840
(@) Includes the resulfs of the Rainin acquisition from November 2001.

Inciudes gooawill amortization of $10,054 and $8,844 in 2001 and 2000, respectively. Beginning in 2002, the Company ceased
amortization of goodwill as required by U.S. GAAP.

Other charges, net consists primarily of charges related fo the Company’s restruciuring programs, interest income, (gains) losses from
foreign currency fransactions, (gains) losses from sales of assefs and other items. The 2003 armount includes a charge of $5,444 related to
the final union sefflement on the closure of our French manufacturing facility. The 2002 and 2001 amounts also include charges of
$28,661 and $15,196, respectively, primarily related to headcount reductions and manufacturing transfers. The 2000 amount includes a
charge of $1,425 relaied to the close-down and consolidation of operations.

The provision for taxes for 2002 includes a benefif of $23,135 related to the complefion of a tax restructuring program and relafed fax
audits.

Working capitol represents fofal current assels net of cash, less fotal current liabilities net of shori-ferm borrowings and current maturities of
fong-term debt.

Other non-current liabilities consist of pension and other post-retirement liabilities, plus cerfain other non-current liabilities. See Note 12 fo
the audifed consolidated financial siatements included herein.

No dividends were paid during the five-year period ended December 31, 2004,
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condifion and results of operations should be read
together with our audited consolidated financial statements.

Overview

We operate a global business, with sales that are diversified by geographic region, produci range and customer,
We hold leading positions worldwide in many of our markets and afiribute this leadership o several factors, including
the strength of our brand name and reputation, our comprehensive offering of innovative instruments and solutions,
and the breadth and quality of our global sales and service network.

Net sales in U.S. dollars increased by 8% and 7% in 2004 and 2003, respectively, of which §% and 7% was
due to currency exchange rafe fluctuations. We have confinued to face a challenging world economy in 2004 with
conditions generally strong in Asia and stabilizing to improving in the United States and Europe.

Looking forward fo 2005, we anticipate overall customer spending patterns to be similar 1o 2004 with certain
differences based on geographic regions. In Asia we expect continued growth, but af o slower level than 2004,
Specifically, we believe growth in China will be less than the 21% growth we experienced in 2004, In the U.S. we
expect to see similar customer spending levels to what we saw in 2004 and in Europe we expect some improvement
from the relatively weak levels of recent years.

In respect of our end user markets, we experienced improved resuits during 2004 in our laboratory-related end
user markets, such as pharmaceuticat and biotech customers. We believe that the long-term fundamentals of this
market are aftractive and our solutions assist these companies in enhancing their productivity as they meet the
challenges of new drug approval activity, heightened price regulation and industry consolidation.

In our industrial markets, the principal growth driver in recent years has been increased investment in China
related to production capacity. Although this provides a significant opportunity for our Chinese operations, this
manufacturing shift has a negative impact on cerain of our industrial end user markets in the U.S. and Europe. Food
producers and packagers also remain a large part of our industrial customer base. In recent years, we have benefited
from these companies’ efforts to improve product quality and safety. However, this sector is experiencing high levels
of competitive pressure which may negatively impact cusiomer spending levels.

In our refail end markets, we experienced improved results in both the U.S. and Europe relative to weak activity
in recent years. Traditionally the spending levels in this sector have experienced more volatility than our other
customer sectors. Increased spending in the past has come from evenis such as Y2K and the introduction of the euro
currency. We have not experienced similar friggering events in recent years. Similar fo our industrial business, China
is also an important driver of growth as the expansion of their local economy is creating a significant number of new
retail stores each year.

in 2005, we expect to continue to pursue the overall business growth sirategies which we have followed in
recent years:

Gaining Market Share. We launched a global sales and marketing initiative during 2004. We aim to
accelerate our sales growth by improving the productivity and effectiveness of our global sales and marketing
processes. While this initiative is broad based, initial efforts to improve these processes include the implementation of
more effective pricing strategies and processes, increased activities for leads generation and further automation of
field processes. Our comprehensive service offering also helps us further penetrate developed markets. In addition to
traditional services, we offer installation, calibration, regulatory compliance services and remote service support.

Expanding Emerging Markets. We have a two-pronged strategy in Asia: first, 10 capitalize on growth opportu-
nities in these markets and second, fo leverage our low-cost manufacturing operations in China. We have a long
track record in China, and our sales in Asia have grown at more than 10% per year in local currency since 1999. We
have broadened our product offering to the Asian markets and are benefiting as multinational customers shiff
production to China. We are shifting more of our manufacturing fo China to reduce costs, where our three facilities
manufacture for the local markets as well as for expor.
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Extending Our Technology Lead. We continue to focus on product innovation. In the last three years, we spent
between 5.5% and 6.0% of net sales on research and development, We seek to drive shorter product life cycles, as
well as improve our product offerings and their capabilities with additional integrated technologies and software.

Maintaining Cost Leadership. We continue to strive fo improve our margins by reducing our cost basis. During
the period following our buyout in 1996, we reduced the number of our manufacturing facilifies from 29 to 19.
Shifting production to China has been an imporant component of this consolidation. We have also implemented
global procurement programs over the last several years aimed at lowering supply costs.

Pursuing Strategic Acquisitions. While we have not completed a significant acquisition since 2001, acquisi-
tions remain part of our growth strategy. We seek to pursue acquisitions that may leverage our global sales and
service nefwork, respected brand, extensive distribution channels and fechnological leadership. We have identified life
sciences, packaging and process analytics as three key areas for acquisitions.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We suppiement our U.S. GAAP results with non-GAAP financial measures. The principal non-GAAP financial
measure we use is Adjusted Operating Income, which we define as gross profit less research and development,
selling, general and administrative expenses and restructuring charges, before amorization, interest, other charges
and taxes. The most directly comparable U.S. GAAP financial measure is net earnings.

We believe that Adjusted Operating Income is imporiant supplemental information for investors. Adjusted
Operating Income is used internally as the principal profit measurement by our segments in their reporting fo
management. We use this measure because it excludes omortization, inferest, other charges and taxes, which are not
dllocated fo the segments.

On a consolidated basis, we also believe Adjusted Operating Income is an important supplemental method ot
measuring profitability. It is used internally by senior management for measuring profitability, setting performance
targets for managers and has historically been used as one of the means of publicly providing guidance on possible
future results. We also believe that Adjusted Operating Income is an imporfant performance measure because it
provides a measure of comparability to other companies with different capital or legal structures, which accordingly
may be subject to disparate interest rotes and effective tax rates, and fo companies which may incur different
amortization expenses or impairment charges related to infangible assets.

Adjusted Operating Income is used in addition 1o and in conjunction with results presented in accordance with
U.S. GAAP. Adjusted Operating Income is not intended to represent operafing income under U.S. GAAP and should not
be considered as an alternative to net earnings as an indicator of our performance because of the following
limitations.

Limitations of our non-GAAP measure, Adjusted Operating Income

Our non-GAAP measure, Adjusted Operating Income, has certain material limitations as follows:

* |t does not include interest expense. Because we have borrowed money to finance some of our operations,
interest is a necessary and ongoing part of our costs and has assisted us in generating revenue. Therefore any
measure that excludes interest expense has material limitations;

* |t does not include taxes. Because payment of toxes is a necessary and ongoing port of our operations, any
measure that excludes taxes has material limitations; and

« |t excludes amortization expense and other charges. Because these items are recurring, any measure that
excludes them has material limitations.

Adjusted Operating Income should not be relied upon to the exclusion of U.S. GAAP financial measures, but
reflects an additional measure of comparability and means of viewing aspects of our operations that, when viewed
together with our U.S. GAAP results and the accompanying reconciliation 1o net earnings, provides o more complete
understanding of factors and trends affecting our business.
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Because Adjusted Operating Income is not standardized, it may not be possible to compare with other
companies’ non-GAAP financial measures having the same or a similar name. We strongly encourage investors to
review our financial statements and publicly filed reports in their entirety and not 1o rely on any single financial
measure.

Our Adjusted Operating Income increased from $136.5 million in 2002 to $179.4 million in 2004. This
performance was achieved while we confinued to invest in product development and in our distribution and
manufacturing infrastructure. Adjusted Operating Income includes restructuring charges of $28.7 million in 2002,
This charge is described more fully below. A reconciliation of Adjusted Operating Income to net earnings for 2002 to
2004 is included in “Results of Operations” below.

Restructuring Activities

As further described in Note 14 to our audited consolidated financial statements, during the three months ended
June 30, 2002 we recorded a restructuring charge of $28.7 million ($20.1 million after tax) which comprised
severance, asset write-downs and other exit costs, primarily related to headcount reductions and manufacturing
transfers. As a result of these actions, we eliminated approximately $18 million of costs from the business. We
estimate that approximately $6 million of these savings were realized in 2002, $8 million in 2003, and $4 million in
2004,

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the charge taken in the second quarter of 2002 related to the exit of our French
manufacturing facility was limited to the minimum contractual payment required by French taw. During the three
months ended March 31, 2003, we recorded a restructuring charge of $5.4 million ($3.8 million after tax), related
to the final union settlement on the closure of this facility. This charge comprised the additional employee-related
costs resulting from final setflement of the social plan negotiated with the French workers’ council during the first
quarter of 2003.

We assess our accrual for resfructuring activities on an ongoing basis. During the three months ended
September 30, 2003, we recorded a reduction in the restructuring accrual of $1.0 million, included within Other
charges (income), net, as a result of lower employee-related charges than originally anticipated. Also, a restructuring
charge of $1.4 million was recorded during the three months ended September 30, 2003, related to an extension of
manufacturing consolidation activities. This charge comprised severance of $1.0 million, included within Other
charges (income), netf, and inventory write-downs of $0.4 million, included within Cost of sales.

At December 31, 2003, we had substantiaily completed the restructuring programs described above.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth cerfain items from our consolidated statements of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 (amounts in thousands).

2004 2003 2002
Netsales ........... .. i $1,404,454  $1,304,431 $1,213,707
Costofsales ............. .o iiii i, 722,047 686,255 645,970
Gross profit. . ... ... 682,407 618,176 567,737
Research and development ........................... 83,217 78,003 70,625
Selling, general and administrative ..................... 419,780 372,822 331,959
Amortization. ... ... .. 12,256 11,724 9,332
Interest @Xpense . ....... ... 12,888 14,153 17,209
Other charges, net (b) . ........ ... . ... ... .. ..... 42 4,563 28,202
Eamings beforetaxes. ........... ... $ 154,224 $ 136911 $ 110,410
Net eamings. . ... $ 107,957 $ 95838 § 100421

Adjusted Operating Income (after restructuring charges) (o)  § 179,410 § 161,907 $ 136,492

Footnotes on following page.
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A reconciligtion of Adjusted Operating Income to net earnings follows:

2004 2003 2002
Adjusted Operating Income (after resfructuring charges) (a) ...... §179,410 §161,907 $136,492
Amodization .. ... ... 12,256 11,724 9,332
Interest @XPeNnSe. . .. ... .. . e 12,888 14,153 17,209
Other charges, net (excluding restructuring charges) (b) ........ 42 (881 (459)
Provisionforfaxes ................. . ... . . .. .. ... 46,267 41,073 9,989
Neteamings ........... .. oo $107,957 $ 95,838 $100,421

(a) See "Non-GAAP Financial Measures” above. Adjusted Operating Income is defined as gross profit less research and
development, selling, general and administralive expenses and restructuring charges, before amortization, inferest expense
and other charges. Resfructuring charges that have been included are the costs sef forth in Note (b) below.

(b) Other charges, net consists primarily of charges related fo our restructuring programs, infterest income, (gains) losses from
foreign currency fransactions, (gains) losses from sales of assefs and other items. The 2003 and 2002 amounts include
restructuring charges of $5,444 and 828,661 respectively, related primarily fo headcount reductions and manufacturing
fransfers.

Results of Operations — Consolidated
Net sales

Net sales were $1,404.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to $1,304.4 million in
2003 and $1,213.7 million in 2002. This represents increases in U.S. dollars of 8% and 7% in 2004 and 2003,
respectively, of which 5% and 7% was due to currency exchange rate fluctuations.

In 2004, our net sales by geographic destination in U.S. dollars increased by 2% in the Americas, 9% in Europe
and 19% in Asia/Rest of World, of which 9% and 4% in Europe and Asia/Rest of World, respectively, was due to
currency exchange rate fiuctuations. A discussion of sales by operating segment is included below.

As described in Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements, our net sales comprise product sales of
precision instruments and related services. Service revenues are primarily derived from regulatory compliance
qualification, calibration, certification and repair services, much of which is provided under contracts, as well as sales
of spare parts.

Net sales of products increased in U.S. dollars by 7% and 6% in 2004 and 2003, respectively, of which 5%
and 7% was due to currency exchange rate fluctuations. Service revenue (including spare pars) increased in
U.S. dollars by 11% and 12% in 2004 and 2003, respectively, of which 5% and 9% was due o currency
exchange rate fluctuations.

Excluding the effect of currency exchange rate fluctuations, net sales for our taboratory-related products
increased 4% during 2004. This includes growth in each major product category, particularly process analytics. Our
sales growth of laboratory-related products was also reduced by approximately 2% during 2004 due to the phase-
out of our exit of third party electronic component sales. Excluding the effect of currency exchange rote fluctuations,
net sales for our laboratory-related products decreased 1% during 2003, primarily due to a decrease in drug
discovery products as a result of weakness in customer spending.

Net sales of our industrial-related products increased 1% in 2004 excluding the effect of currency exchange rate
fluctuations. We experienced sales growth in our core industrial and packaging products, offset by a decrease in sales
of transportation and logistics products relative o strong project activity in 2003. While the long-ferm fundamentals
of the market for our fransporiation and logistics products are strong, the timing of projects can impact the year-over-
year comparison significantly. Excluding the effect of currency exchange rate fluctuations, net sales of industrial-
related products increased 5% during 2003.
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In our food retailing markets, net sales excluding the effect of currency exchange rafe fluctuations increased 8%
in 2004 over the previous year, as customer spending patterns in the U.S. and Europe continue to improve relative to
weak activity last year. Retail saies growth also includes improved sales of our in-store refail item management
soffware solutions and expansion of our core retfail products into Asia. Net sales in food retailing decreased 6% in
2003 excluding the effect of currency exchange rate fluctuations. This decrease was principatly due to difficult
comparisons relating to strong U.S. project activity in 2002, as well as suppressed spending patterns in Europe after
the significant euro conversion-related investments by customers in previous years and weak consumer confidence in
major European economies.

Gross profit

Gross profit as a percentage of net sales was 48.6% for 2004, compared 1o 47.4% for 2003 and 46.8% for
2002, Improvements in the margin over the two-year-period reflect the benefits of our cost rafionalization and
product fransfer initiatives, partially offset by adverse currency impacts.

Gross profit as a percentage of net sales for products was 52.3% for 2004, compared to 50.9% for 2003 and
50.8% for 2002. These improvements also reflect the benefits of our cost rationalization and product transfer
initiatives, offset by adverse currency impacts.

Gross profit as a percentage of net sales for services (including spare pans) was 36.1% for 2004, compared to
35.1% for 2003 and 32.0% for 2002. The increase in the margin over the two years reflects improved productivity,
as well as the expansion of higher margin regulatory compliance service sales.

Research and development and selling, general and adminisirative expenses

Research and development expenses as a percentage of net sales were 5.9% for 2004, compared to 6.0% for
2003 and 5.8% in 2002, Research and devefopment expenses increased in U.S. doliars by 7% in 2004 and 10%
in 2003, of which 6% and 8% was due 10 currency exchange rate fluctuations. The increases in 2004 and 2003 are
principally due to investments in our new laboratory and other products.

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales increased to 29.9% for 2004,
compared fo 28.6% for 2003 and 27.4% for 2002. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased in
U.S. dollars by 13% in 2004 and 12% in 2003, of which 5% and 8% was due to currency exchange rate
fluctuations. During 2004 we incurred $5.0 million reiated to an investigation into allegations made by an employee
with respect to the Company and various company processes. Our spending also includes a significant increase in
Sarbanes Oxley regulatory compliance costs, including approximately $3.5 million of external professional fees
during 2004. The increases in 2004 and 2003 also inciude spending related to our new product introductions as
well as higher performance related compensation during 2004.

Other charges (income), net

Other charges (income), net were $0.1 million in 2004, compared to $4.6 million in 2003 and $28.2 million
in 2002. The 2003 and 2002 amounts include restructuring charges of $5.4 million ($3.8 million after tax) and
$28.7 million ($20.1 million after tax), respectively, comprising severance, asset write-downs and other exit costs
primarily related to headcount reductions and manufacturing transfers, described more fully in “Restructuring
Activities” above.

Interest expense and taxes

Interest expense was $12.9 million for 2004, compared fo $14.2 million for 2003 and $17.2 million for 2002.
The decreases are principally due to lower average borrowings.

The provision for taxes is based upon our effective tax rate for the related periods, which was 30% for 2004 and
2003 and 9% for 2002. During the three months ended June 30, 2002 we recorded a one-time tax gain of
$23.1 million related to the completion of a fax reorganization program and related tax audits, which contributed to
an overall lower effective tax rate in 2002.
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During the fourth quarter of 2002, we began a program of repatriating foreign subsidiary earnings to the United
States in a tax efficient manner. This program resulted in a repatriation of foreign earnings of $85 million during
2002, $100 million during 2003 and a further $5 million in 2004. In addition, this program will result in the
repatriation of $75 million of foreign earnings over the next few years. The 2002 repatriation of $85 million created
additional U.S. taxable income resulting in the utilization of certain historical tax aftributes related to our
U.S. operations and release of the related U.S. federal deferred tax valuation allowance. The tax effects related to the
future repatriation of $75 million have been accrued.

The Company is currenfly under examination in various faxing jurisdictions in which it conducts business
operations. White the Company has not yet received any material assessments from these taxing authorities, the
Company believes that adequate amounts of taxes and related interest and penalties have been provided for any
adverse adjustments as a result of these examinations and that the ultimate outcome of these examinations will not
resuit in an adverse material impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial position.

Earnings before taxes and net earnings

Earnings before taxes were $154.2 million for 2004, compared to $136.9 million in 2003 and $110.4 million
in 2002. Net earnings were $108.0 million for 2004, compared to $95.8 million in 2003 and $100.4 million in
2002.

The 2004 results include $5.0 mitlion ($3.5 million after tax) related to the previously mentioned investigation
and $3.5 million ($2.5 million after tax) of exiernal professional fees related to Sarbanes Oxley regulatory compli-
ance costs.

These results also include the restructuring charge of $5.4 million ($3.8 million after tax) in 2003 and the
restructuring charge of $28.7 million ($20.1 million after tax) and one-time tax gain of $23.1 million in 2002.

Supplemental data: Adjusted Operating Income

See “Non-GAAP Financial Measures™ above. Adjusted Operating Income (gross profit less research and develop-
ment, selling, general and administrative expenses and restructuring charges, before amortization, inferest expense
and other charges) increased to $179.4 million or 12.8% of net sales for 2004, compared to $161.9 million or
12.4% of net sales in 2003 and $136.5 million or 11.2% of net sales in 2002. Adjusted Operating Income includes
restructuring charges of $5.4 million in 2003 and $28.7 million in 2002.

Adjusted Operating Income increased in 2004 and 2003 as a result of our increased sales volume, benefits of
our cost rafionalization and product transfer initiatives and a decrease in restructuring charges recorded in 2003 and
2002. These beneiits were offset in part by higher research and development costs and selling costs principally
related 1o new products, as well as the previously mentioned costs in 2004 associated with the investigafion and
external professional fees related to Sarbanes Oxley regulatory compliance.

Results of Operations — by Operating Segment

The following is a discussion of the financial results of our operating segments. We currently have six reportable
segments: Principal U.S. Operations, Other Western European Operations, Principal Central European Operations,
Swiss R&D and Manufacturing Operations, Asia and Other. A more detailed description of these segments is outlined
in Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements.
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Principal U.S. Operations
Increase in % Increase In %"

2004 2003 2002 2004 vs. 2003 2003 vs. 2002
Netsales ................. $441,707 $426,680 $441,898 4% (3)%
Segment profit ............. $ 67,901 S 68516 $ 57,008 M% 20%

(1) Represents U.S. doliar growth (decline) for net sales and segment profit.

Net sales to external customers in our Principal U.S. Operations segment increased 4% in 2004, compared fo a
decrease of 3% in 2003. Our Principal U.S. Operations segment benefited from improved market conditions in 2004,
as well as new product introductions. The 2004 increase in net sales to external customers reflects growth in most
products, particularly our food retailing end markets.

The net sales growth in our food retail business was primarily due to improved results relative to weak project
activity in 2003. Our U.S. food retail sales growth also includes improved sales of our in-store refail item manage-
ment software solutions. Net sales to external customers of our laboratory-related products increased during 2004
due to solid performance of our process analytics end market and growth in our liquid handling products. We also
experienced increased net sales of industrial related products during 2004 primarily due to improved results in most
product lines, offset in part by a decrease of approximately $5.8 million in industrial OEM product sales. Net sales fo
external customers in our Principal U.S. Operations segment also benefited by approximately 1% from business
transfers from our Other segment.

The decrease in 2003 sales of our Principal U.S. Operations was primarily the result of a decline in laboratory
customer spending, as well as a decrease in our retail business due to relative strong 2002 project activity.

The decrease in segment profit or Adjusted Operating Income of our Principal U.S. Operations segment during
2004 reflects the impact of our product transfer initiatives on this segment, as well as additionai costs related to
product faunches, a North American sales meeting held once every five years, increased employee healthcare costs
and an impairment charge relating fo a building held for sale of $1.3 million during 2004 pertaining to this segment.

The increase in 2003 segment profit or Adjusted Operating income is due primarily 1o ihe restructuring charge
recorded in 2002, of which $11.8 million relates to this segment. Adjusted Operating Income in 2003 was also
impacted by the reduced sales volume.

Other Western European Operations (including France, U.K., italy and Spain)
Increase in %" Increase in %

2004 2003 2002 2004 vs. 2003 2003 vs. 2002
Netsales ................. §339,807 $306,644 $264,683 1% 16%
Segment profit ............. $ 24640 $ 18491 § 3,709 33% 399%

(1) Represents U.S. doliar growth (decline) for net sales and segment profit.

Currency exchange rate fluctuations increased net sales growth to external customers of our Other Western
European Operations segment by 10% and 17% in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Local currency net sales to
external customers of our Other Western European Operations segment increased 1% in 2004, compared fo
decrease of 1% in 2003.

Western Europe benefited from improved market conditions in most countries during 2004, as well as new
product infroductions. Our 2004 local currency net sales to external customers in our Other Western European
Operations segment primarily reflects growth in our laboratory-related products and our food retailing end markets.
These trends were partially offset by a decline in our industrial-related products, which includes a decrease in
transportation and logistics products relative to strong 2003 project activity.

Sales trends in 2003 were particularly notable in the major Western European economies, which faced low
consumer confidence. Our local currency sales decline in 2003 was also the result of the declines in our laboratory
and retail end markets, partially offset by solid results for packaging and transportation and logistics products. The
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decline in sales of our European retail end markets in 2003 was parily due to the significant euro conversion related
investments by customers in 2001.

Segment profit or Adjusted Operating Income increased $S6.1 million in our Other Western European Operations
segment during 2004, compared fo an increase of $14.8 million in 2003. These increases are principally the result
of reduced restructuring charges, as well as benefits of our cost rationalization and product transfer initiatives and
favorable currency translation fluctuations. Restructuring charges had the effect of reducing Adjusted Operating
Income of our Other Western European Operations segment by $4.4 million and $11.4 million in 2003 and 2002,
respectively. In addition, this segment benefited in 2004 due to a $1.1 million reduction of our restructuring related
accruals as a result of lower employee related charges than originaily anticipated.

Principal Central European Operations

increase In %" Increase In %"

2004 2003 2002 2004 vs. 2003 2003 vs. 2002
Netsales ................. $198,475 $180,272 $158,232 10% 14%
Segment profit ............. $ 22,680 $ 20,453 $ 13,360 1% 53%

(1) Represents U.S. dolfar growth (decline) for net sales and segment profit,

Currency exchange rate fluctuations increased net sales growth to external customers of our Principal Central
European Operations segment by 9% and 18% in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Local currency net sales to external
customers of our Principal Central European Operations segment increased 1% in 2004, compared fo a decrease of
4% in 2003.

Similar to our Other Western European Operations segment, Central Europe benefited from improved market
conditions in most countries during 2004, as well as new product introductions. Our 2004 local currency net sales to
external customers in our Principal Central European segment primarily reflects growth in our laboratory-reiated
products and our food retailing end markets. These trends were partially offset by a decline in our industrial-related
products, which includes a decrease in fransportation and logistics products relative to strong 2003 project activity.

Sales trends in 2003 were particularly notable in the major Central European economies, which faced low
consumer confidence. Our local currency sales decline in 2003 was also the result of the declines in our laboratory
and retail end markets, partiaily offset by solid results for packaging and transportation and logistics products. The
decline in sales of our European refail end markets in 2003 was parly due to the significant euro conversion related
investments by customers in 2001.

Segment profit or Adjusted Operating Income increased $2.2 million in our Principal Central European Opera-
tions segment during 2004, compared to an increase of $7.1 million in 2003. The 2004 increase is primarily the
result of improved sales volume and favorable currency franslation fiuctuations. The 2003 increase is principally the
result of reduced restructuring charges, as well as benefits of our cost rationalization and product transfer inifiatives
and favorable currency translation fluctuations. Restructuring charges had the effect of reducing Adjusted Operating
Income of our Principal Central European Operations segment by $2.8 million in 2002.

Swiss R&D and Manufacturing Operations

Increase in % Increase in %"
2004 2003 2002 2004 vs. 2003 2003 vs. 2002
Netsales .................... $47,582 549,897 $49,632 5% 1%
Segment profit ................ $44,030 $39,970 547,193 10% (15)%

(1) Represents U.S. dollfar growth (decline) for nef sales ond segment profit.

Currency exchange rafe fluctuations increased net sales growth to external customers of our Swiss R&D and
Manufacturing Operations segment by 7% and 14% in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Local currency net sales to
externai customers of our Swiss R&D and Manufacturing Operations segment decreased 12% in 2004 and 13% in
2003. This decrease is primarity due to the exit of our third party electronic component product line, which had the
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effect of reducing net sales growth 1o external customers in this segment by approximately 22% during 2004,
Excluding the effect of the exit of our third party electronic component product line, net sales to externai customers
increased approximately 10% in tocal currency, primarily due to the benefit of business transfers from our Other
segment, as well as increased sales of laboratory balances and analytical instruments.

Segment profit or Adjusted Operating Income increased $4.1 million in our Swiss R&D and Manufacturing
Operations segment during 2004, compared 1o a decrease of $7.2 million in 2003. The increase in 2004 is
principally the result of increased sales to other segments of laboratory-related products, benefits of our cost
rationalization initiatives and favorable currency franslation fluctuations.

Asia
Increase in % Increase in %
2004 2003 2002 2004 vs. 2003 2003 vs. 2002
Netsales ................. $178,311 $147,537 $118,936 21% 24%
Segment profit . ............ $ 41,276 $ 29,575 § 20,966 40% 41%

(1) Represents U.S. dollar growih (decline) for net sales and segment profit.

Currency exchange rate fluctuations had the effect of increasing our Asian segment net sales growth to external
customers by 2% and 3% in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Local currency net soles to external customers in our
Asian segment increased 19% and 21% in 2004 and 2003, respeclively.

The 2004 increase in focal currency net sales fo external customers in Asia reflects 21% growth in China and
9% growth in Japan. These results compare to @ 2003 increase of 40% in China and a decrease of 8% in Japan.
We have confinued fo experience solid sales growth in China based upon the expansion of their economy, as well as
returns on investments in our Chinese husiness including the addition of a new manufacturing facility in 2003.
Despite this significant sales growth, our Chinese net sales growth to external customers slowed during the fourth
quarter of 2004 due o exceptional project activity in the prior year comparable period. In addition, we believe our
Chinese customer spending pafterns may be reduced as a result of the Chinese government’s efforts to slow the
Chinese economy.

Segment profit or Adjusted Operating Income increased $11.7 milfion in Asia during 2004, compared to an
increase of $8.6 million in 2003. These increases were primarily due to the increased sales volume to external
customers and other segments, and the benefits of product fransfer initiatives from our other segments.

Other
Increase in %" Increase in %"
2004 2003 2002 2004 vs. 2003 2003 vs. 2002
Netsales ................. $198,572 $193,401 $180,326 3% 7%
Segment profit ............. $ 21,602 §$ 12330 §$§ 7.357 75% 68%

(1) Represents U.S. dollar growth (decline) for net sales and segment profit.

Net sales in local currencies to external customers in our Other operating segment was flat in 2004, compared
to an increase of 3% in 2003. These results reflect sales growth in gecgraphies such as Russia, Eastern Europe and
Mexico. In addition, our net sales to external customers in this segment were reduced by approximately 5% due to
business transfers to our Principal U.S. Operations and Swiss Manufacturing and R&D Operations segments.

Segment profit or Adjusted Operating Income increased $9.3 million in 2004, compared fo an increase of
$5.0 million in 2003, The 2004 increase is primarily due to favorable currency translation fluctuations, the benefits
of our cost rationalization programs as well as certain product transfers. The 2003 increase was due to the impact of
restructuring charges in the prior year and improved sales volume. In addition, 2002 was also negatively affected by
the economic downturn in Latin America.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is our ability to generate sufficient cash flows from operating activities 1o meet our obligations and
commitments. In addition, liquidity includes the ability to obtain appropriate financing. Currently, our liquidity needs
arise primarily from working capital requirements, capital expenditures and acquisitions.

Cash provided by operating activities totaled $166.0 mitlion in 2004, compared to $117.2 million in 2003
and $115.4 million in 2002. The increase in 2004 resulted principally from increased net earnings and improved
management of operating assets and liabilities. Cash provided by operating activities in 2004 was impacted by
voluntary incremental pension contributions of $10.0 million to our U.S. pension plan. The increase in 2003 cash
provided by operafing activities also resulted principally from improved management of operating assets and
liabilities, partially offset by higher restructuring and tax payments. Cash provided by operating activities in 2003
reflected voluntary incremental pension contributions of $10.0 million to the U.S. pension plan and $7.1 million fo
our U.K. pension plan. Cash provided by operating activifies in 2002 includes a voluntary contribution of $19.0 mil-
lion to the U.S. pension plan. Similar to previous years, we expect to make normal employer pension contributions of
$14.7 million in 2005. Cash provided by operating activities also includes payments for restructuring and related
activities in 2004, 2003 and 2002 of $4.0 million, $16.8 million and $11.1 million, respectively.

During 2004, we spent approximately $2.3 million on acquisitions, including additional consideration related
to earn-out periods associated with acquisitions consummated in prior years. The cash portions of these purchases
were funded from cash generated from operations. We continue to explore potential acquisitions. In connection with
any dcquisition, we may incur additional indebtedness. In addition, the terms of certain of our acquisitions provide for
possible additional earn-out payments. However, we do not currently believe we will make any material payments
relating to such earn-outs.

Capital expenditures are a significant use of funds and are made primarily for machinery, equipment and the
purchase and expansion of facilities. Our capital expenditures totaled $27.9 million in 2004, $27.2 million in 2003
and $33.2 million in 2002. We expect capital expenditures to increase as our business grows, and to fluctuate as
currency exchange rates change.

November 2003 refinancing

On November 12, 2003, we closed a new five-year $300 million credit facility and completed the issuance of
$150 million seven-year Senior Notes. The proceeds from this refinancing were immediately used to repay all of the
borrowings under our former credit agreement, which was then ferminated.

Credit Facility Agreement

The $300 million credit facility is provided by a group of financial insfitutions and has a bullet maturity in
November 2008. It is not subject to any scheduled principal paymenis. Borrowings under the $300 million credit
facility bear interest at current market rates plus a margin based on our senior unsecured credit ratings (currently
“BBB" by Standard & Poor’s and “Baa3” by Moody’s), and is currently set af LIBOR plus 0.6%. We must also pay
utilization and facility fees that are tied to our credit ratings. The $300 million credit facility contains covenants
including maintaining a ratio of debt to earnings before interest, fax, depreciation and amortization of less than 3.25
to 1.0 and an interest coverage ratio of more than 3.5 to 1.0. The facility also places certain limitations on us,
including limiting the ability fo grant liens or incur debt at a subsidiary level. In addition, the $300 million credit
facility has several events of default including upon a change of control. The credit facility is unsecured.

Senior Notes

In November 2003, we issued $150 million of 4.85% unsecured Senior Notes due November 15, 2010. The
Senior Notes rank equally with all our unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness. Interest is payable semi-annually
in May and November. Discount and issuance costs approximated $1.2 million and are being amortized fo interest
expense over the seven-year ferm of the Senior Notes.
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At our option, the Senior Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time at a redemption price equal to
the greater of:

= The principal amount of the Senior Notes; or

* The sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and inferest thereon
discounted to the redemption date on o semi-annual basis af a comparable freasury rate plus a margin of
0.20%.

The Senior Notes contain limitations an our ability to incur liens and enter into sale and leaseback transactions
exceeding 10% of our consolidated net worth,

At December 31, 2004, our consolidated debt, net of cash of $67.2 million, was $136.0 million. In addition to
the Senior Notes, we had borrowings of $46.1 million under our credit facility and $6.9 million under various other
local arrangements. Also at December 31, 2004, we had $244.6 million of availability remaining under the credit
facility.

At December 31, 2004, approximately $27.6 million of the borrowings under the credit facility and local
working capital facilities were denominated in U.S. doltars. The balance of the borrowings under the credit facility and
local working capital facilities were denominated in ceriain of our other principal trading currencies amounting fo
approximately $25.4 miltion. Changes in exchange rates between the currencies in which we generate cash flow and
the currencies in which our borrowings dare denominated affect our liquidity. In addition, because we borrow in
variety of currencies, our debt balances fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates.

At December 31, 2004, we were in compliance with ail covenants set forth in our credit facifity and Senior Notes
agreements. In addition, we do not have any downgrade friggers relating to ratings from rating agencies that would
accelerate the moturity dates of our debt.

We currently believe that cash fiow from operating activities, together with liquidity available under our credit
facility and local working capital facilities, will be sufficient to fund currently anticipated warking capital needs and
capital spending requirements for at least the next several years.

Contractual obligations

The following summarizes certain of our contractual obligations at December 31, 2004 and the effect such
obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods. We do not have significant
outstanding letters of credit or other financial commitments.

Payments Due by Period

Total Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years  3-5 Years  After 5 Years
Longfermdebt (@) .............. $196,290 s — $ — $46,103  $150,187
Non-cancelable operating leases (b) 85,775 21,060 27,903 14,460 22,352
Purchase obligations (¢) .......... 41,206 32,352 8,854 — —
Total (@) ....................... $323,271 §53,412 | 836,757 $60,563  $172,539

(a) As described in Note 9 1o the audited consolidated financial stafements.
(b) As described in Note 15 fo the audited consolidated financial statements.
(c) Represents agreements io purchase goods or services that are enforceable and legolly binding on the Company.
(d) Excludes normal employer pension contributions which are expected to be $14.7 million in 2005.

We have purchase commitments for materials, supplies, services and fixed assets in the normal course of
business. Due to the proprietary nature of many of our materials and processes, cerfain supply contracts confain
penalty provisions. We do not expect potential payments under these provisions to materially affect results of

operations or financial condition. This conclusion is based upon reasonably likely outcomes derived by reference fo
historical experience and current business plans.
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Share repurchase program

On February 5, 2004, we announced a share repurchase program, commencing with an initial buyback of up
to $100 million over the two-year period ending December 31, 2005, In November 2004, in addition fo the
$100 million buyback amount the Company’s Board of Directors approved an additional buyback of up to
$200 million under its share repurchase program over the two-year period ending December 31, 2006. Our share
repurchases are expected to be funded from cash generated from operating activities. Repurchases will be made
through open market fransactions, and the timing will depend on the level of acquisition activity, business and market
conditions, the sfock price, trading restrictions and other factors.

During the year ending December 31, 2004, we spent $103.8 miliion on the repurchase of 2,208,500 shares
at an average price of $46.97.

As of December 31, 2004, opproximately 1.0 million stock options were outstanding that are scheduled 1o
expire in October 2006. These options were granted before the Company’s initial public offering in connection with
the buy-out from Ciba-Geigy. The Company expects that these options wiil be exercised before their expiration date.
Any purchases under the share repurchase program over this time would operate to offset the dilution from these
exercises.

Investigation

At the April 2004 Audit Committee meeting, management informed the committee that the Company had
received allegations from an employee. As a matter of good corporate governance, management recommended, and
the Audit Committee agreed, to conduct an independent investigation of the allegations. The allegations covered a
number of accounting, disclosure and non-financial statement-related items.

The Audit Committee retained independent oulside counsel and forensic accountants to conduct an investigation
of these matters, as well as ceriain other areas directly or indirectly related to the Company’s preparation of ifs
financial statements.

In August 2004, the Company announced the complefion of the finoncial aspects of the investigation and that
the Audit Commitiee and Board of Directors concluded there would be no change to the Company’s financial
statements. Based on the investigation, the Board (based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee) made
changes to improve the leadership and oversight of its financial operations and to reinforce the Board’s commitment
fo maintaining strong corporate governance. Mr. William Donnelly, who was Chief Financial Officer from 1997 to
mid-2002 returned from an operating job inside the Company to the position of CFO in August 2004. The Company
has also stated that it plans additional changes to enhance its financial organization, as well as the methods by
which complaints may be reported.

All aspects of the Audit Commiftee’s investigation are now complele.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Currently, we have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely fo have a current or
future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations,
liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that is material,

Effect of Currency on Results of Operations

Because we conduct operations in many countries, our operating income can be significantly affected by
fluctuations in currency exchange rates. Swiss franc-denominated expenses represent @ much greafer percentage of
our operafing expenses than Swiss franc-denominated sales represent of our net sales. In part, this is because most of
our manufacturing costs in Switzeriand relate to products that are sold outside Switzerland. Moreover, a substantial
percentage of our research and development expenses and general and administrative expenses are incurred in
Switzerland. Therefore, if the Swiss franc strengthens against all or most of our major frading currencies (e.g., the
U.S. dollar, the euro, other major European currencies and the Japanese yen), our operating profit is reduced. We
also have significantly more sales in European currencies (other than the Swiss franc) than we have expenses in
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those currencies. Therefore, when European currencies weaken against the U.S. dollar and the Swiss frang, it also
decreases our operating profits. Accordingly, the Swiss franc exchange rate fo the euro is an important cross-rate
monitored by the Company. We estimate that a 1% strengthening of the Swiss franc against the euro would result in a
decrease in our earnings before tax of $0.9 million fo $1.1 million on an annual basis. In addition to the effects of
exchange rate movements on operating profits, our debt levels can fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates,
particularly between the U.S. dollar and the Swiss franc. Based on our outstanding debt at December 31, 2004, we
estimate that a 10% weakening of the U.S. dollar against the currencies in which our debt is denominated would
result in an increase of approximately $2.8 million in the reported U.S. dollar value of the debt.

Taxes

We are subject to taxation in many jurisdictions throughout the world. Our effective tax rate and tax liability will
be affected by a number of factors, such as the amount of taxable income in particular jurisdictions, the tox rates in
such jurisdictions, fax treaties between jurisdictions, the extent to which we transfer funds between jurisdictions,
earnings repatriations between jurisdictions and changes in law. Generally, the fax liability for each faxpayer within
the group is determined either (i) on a non-consolidated/non-combined basis or (ii) on a consolidated/combined
basis only with other eligible entities subject fo fax in the same jurisdiction, in either case without regard 1o the taxable
losses of non-consolidated/non-combined affiliated legal entities. As a result, we may pay income taxes to certain
jurisdictions even though on an overall basis we incur a net loss for the period.

Our effective tax rates for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were approximately 30%,
30% and 9%, respectively, as described in “"Results of Operations — Consolidated — Inferest expense and taxes”.

Environmenta! Matters

We are subject to environmental laws and regulations in the jurisdictions in which we operate. We own or lease
a number of properties and manufacturing facilities around the world. Like many of our competitors, we have
incurred, and will continue to incur, capital and operating expenditures and other costs in complying with such lows
and regutations in both the United States and abroad.

We are currently involved in, or have potential liability with respect to, the remediation of past contamination in
certain of our facilities in both the United States and abroad. Our subsidiary Hi-Speed Checkweigher Co., Inc. ("Hi-
Speed™) is one of two private parties ordered to perform certain remedial actions under an administrative consent
order that the New Jersey Depariment of Environmental Protection ("NJDEP™) signed on June 13, 1988 with respect
to certain property in Landing, New Jersey. GEI International Corporation ("GEI”) is the other ordered party. GEI has
failed to fulfill all its obligations under the NJDEP order, and Hi-Speed has recently entered info discussions with the
NJDEP about the next steps to be undertaken as a result. NJDEP has agreed with Hi-Speed that the residual
contaminants can be addressed through the establishment of a Classification Exception Area and concurrent Well
Restriction Area for the site. The NJDEP does not view these vehicles as remedial measures, but rather as “institutional
confrols” that must be adequately maintained and periodically evaluated. The Company estimates that the costs of
compliance associated with the site will be approximately $0.3 million over the next seven years.

In addition, cerfain of our present and former facilities have or had been in operation for many decades and,
over such time, some of these facilities may have used substances or generated and disposed of wastes which are or
may be considered hazardous. It is possibie that these sites, as well as disposal sites owned by third paries to which
we have sent wastes, may in the future be identified and become the subject of remediation. Accordingly, although
we believe that we are in substantial compliance with applicable environmental requirements and 1o date we have
not incurred material expenditures in connection with environmental matters, it is possible that we could become
subject to additional environmental liabilities in the future that could result in a material adverse effect on our financial
condition or results of operations.

Inflation

Inflafion can affect the costs of goods and services that we use, including raw materials o manufacture our
products. The compefitive environment in which we operate limits somewhat our ability to recover higher costs
through increased selling prices. Moreover, there may be differences in inflation rates between countries in which we
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incur the major portion of our costs and other couniries in which we sell products, which may limit our ability fo
recover increased costs. We remain committed o operations in China and Eastern Europe, which have experienced
inflationary conditions. To date, inflotionary conditions have not had a material effect on our operating results.
However, as our presence in China and Eastern Europe increases, these inflationary conditions could have a greater
impact on our operating results.

Quantitative uhd Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We have only limited involvement with derivative financial instruments and do not use them for trading
purposes.

We have entered into foreign currency forward contracts to economically hedge short-term intercompany
balances with our international businesses and a portion of our Swiss franc/euro exposure on a monthly basis. Such
contracts limit our exposure o both favorable and unfavorable currency fluctuations. A sensitivity analysis to changes
in the U.S. dollar and Swiss franc on these foreign currency-denominated contracts indicates that if the U.S. dollar
and Swiss franc uniformly worsened by 10% against all of our currency exposures, the fair value of these instruments
would decrease by $5.6 million at December 31, 2004, as compared with $4.5 million at December 31, 2003. Any
resulting changes in fair value would be offset by changes in the underlying hedged balance sheet position. The
sensitivity analysis assumes a parallel shift in foreign currency exchange rates. The assumption that exchange rates
change in parallel fashion may overstate the impact of changing exchange rafes on assets and liabilities denomi-
nated in a foreign currency. We also have other currency risks as described under “Effect of Currency on Results of
Operations”.

We have entered into certain interest rate swap agreements. These contracts are more fully described in Note 5 fo
our audited consolidated financia! statements. The market value of these contracts at both December 31, 2004 and
2003 was $0.4 million. Based on our agreements outstanding at December 31, 2004, a 100-basis-point increase
in interest rates would result in a decrease in the net aggregate market value of these instruments of $1.6 million, as
compared with a decrease of $1.9 million at December 31, 2003. Conversely, a 100-basis-point decrease in interest
rates would result in a $1.7 million increase in the net aggregate market vatue of these instruments, as compared
with a net increase of $1.9 million ot December 31, 2003. Any change in fair value would not affect our
consolidated statement of operations unless such agreements and the debt they hedge were prematurely seftled.

Critical Accounting Policies

Management's discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our
audited consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation
of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we
evaluate our estimates, including those related to pensions and other post-retirement benefits, inventories, intangible
assefs, income faxes, revenue and warranty costs. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various
other assumptions that are believed fo be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in
the preparation of our audited consolidated financioal statements. For a detfailed discussion on the application of these
and other accounting policies, see Note 2 to our audited consolidated financial statements.

Employee benefit plans

The net periodic pension cost for 2004 and projected benefit obligation as of December 31, 2004 were
$2.5 million and $107.4 million, respectively, for our U.S. pension plans, and $7.1 million and $465.3 million,
respectively, for our international pension plans. The net periodic post-retirement cost for 2004 and projected benefit
obligation as of December 31, 2004 for our U.S. post-retirement medical benefit plan were $1.0 miflion and
$26.3 million, respectively.
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Pension and post-retirement benefit plan expense and obligations are developed from assumptions in actuarial
valuations. These assumptions include the discount rate and expected relurn on plan assets. In accordance with
U.S. GAAP, actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods. While
management believes the assumptions used are appropriate, differences in actual experience or changes in assump-
tions may affect our plan obligations and future expense.

The expected rates of return on the various defined benefit pension plans’ assets are based on the asset
allocation of each plan and the long-ferm projected return of those assets, which represent a diversified mix of U.S.
and international corporate equities and government and corporate debt securities. In Aprif 2002, we froze our
U.S. defined benefit pension plan and discontinued our retiree medical program for certain current and all future
employees. Consequently, no significant future service costs will be incurred on these plans. For 2004, the average
return on assefs assumpfion was 8.5% for the U.S. plan and 5.2% for the international plans. A change in the rate of
return of 1% would impact annual benefit plan expense by approximately $4.0 million after tax.

The discount rates for defined benefit and post-retirement plans are set by benchmarking against high-quality
corporate bonds. For 2004, the average discount rate assumption was 5.75% for the U.S. plans and 4.2% for the
international plans, representing a weighted average of local rates in countries where such plans exist. A decrease in
the discount rate of 1% would impact annual benefit plan expense by approximately $1.6 million dfter tax.

In 2004 and 2003, we made voluntary incremental funding payments of $10.0 million and $17.1 million,
respectively, to reduce the underfunded status of our U.S. and U.K. pension plans. As a result of these voluntary
incremental pension payments, we do not expect o make any significant required pension payments during the next
two years. However, if the equity markets do not mirror expected rates of return, in the future we could be required to
make additional cash funding payments or adjust the $46.9 million additional minimum pension liability recorded at
December 31, 2004.

The Company also has employee stock option plans which are accounted for under the intrinsic value
recognition and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued fo Employees™ and related interpretations. As stock options have been issued with exercise prices equal to the
market value of the underlying shares on the grant date, no compensation cost has resulted. Notes 2 and 11 1o the
audited consolidated financial statements provide supplemental information, including pro forma earnings and
earnings per share, as if the Company had accounted for options based on the fair value method prescribed by
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” That methodology yields an estimate of fair value based
in part on a number of management estimates, including future volafility and estimated option lives. Changes in these
assumplions could significantly impact the estimated fair value of stock options. See also Statement No. 123 (revised
2004) issued by the FASB in regards fo “Stock Based Compensation” in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies, New Accounting Pronouncements.

Inventory
As of December 31, 2004, inventories net of allowances were $156.5 million.

We record our inventory at the lower of cost or net realizabie value. Cost, which includes direct materials, labor
and overhead, is generally determined using the first in, first out (FIFO) method. The estimated net realizable value is
based on assumptions for future demand and related pricing. Excess and obsolete reserves are established based on
forecast usage, orders and fechnological obsolescence. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those
projected by management, reductions in the value of inventory may be required.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

As of December 31, 2004, our consolidated balance sheet included goodwill of $433.7 million and other
intangible assets of $126.5 million.

Our business acquisitions typically result in goodwill and other intangible assets, which affect the amount of
future period amortization expense and possible impairment expense that we will incur. The determination of the
value of such intangible assets requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect our consolidated
financia! statements.
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In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Infangible Assets” (“SFAS 142"), our goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized, but are evaluated for impairment annually in the fourth quarter, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset might be impaired. The evaluation is
based on valuation models that estimate fair value based on expected future cash flows and profitability projections.
in preparing the valuation models, we consider a number of factors, including operating results, business plans,
economic conditions, future cash fiows, and transactions and market place data. There are inherent uncertainties
related fo these factors and our judgment in applying them to the impairment analyses. The significant estimates and
assumptions within our fair value models include sales growth, controllable cost growth, perpetual growth, effective
tax rates and discount rates. Our assessments to date have indicated that there has been no impairment of these
assefs.

Our drug discovery reporting unit is sensitive to changes in biotech and pharmaceutical capital spending. We
currently estimate the fair value of the Company's drug discovery reporting unit exceeds its carrying value of
$34.2 million as of December 31, 2004, In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142, the Company monitors the
fair value of this reporting unit closely to determine if the business plans are being achieved. For example, we monitor
whether the forecasted benefils of our drug discovery cost reduction programs are being realized.

The Company’s intangible assets include a $19.9 million indefinite life intangible asset relating to an infellectual
propenty license. This license is currently subject to litigation with the granfor. While the Company believes its rights
under the license will be upheld, if they were not to be upheld, expected cash flows generated by the license would be
reduced and the related $19.9 million asset could be impaired, causing a non-cash charge of up to $14 million after
tax. Management does not believe this outcome or any other consequences of the case will have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial condition or resulis of operations.

Should any of these estimates or assumptions in the preceding paragraphs not be accurate, or should we incur
lower than expected operating performance or cash flows, we may experience a friggering event that requires a new
fair value assessment for our reporting units, possibly prior to the required annual assessment. These types of events
and resulting analysis could result in impairment charges for goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets if the
fair value estimate declines below the carrying value.

Our amortization expense related fo intangible assets with finite lives may materially change should cur
estimates of their useful lives change.

Income taxes

Income tax expense and deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect management's assessment of actual future
taxes to be paid on items in the financial statements. We record a valuation dllowance fo reduce our deferred tax
assets to the amount that is more likely than not fo be realized. While we have considered future taxable income and
ongoing prudent and feasible fax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance, in the event
we were o determine that we would be able to realize our deferred tax assefs in the future in excess of the net
recorded amount, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would increase income, equity or goodwill in the period
such determination was made. Likewise, should we determine that we would not be able to realize all or part of the
net deferred tax asset in the future, an odjustmem to the deferred tax asset would be charged fo income in the period
such determination was made.

In 2002 and 2004, provisions were made for U.S. income faxes on cerfain undistributed earnings of
non-U.S. subsidiaries as a decision was made fo repatriate these earnings rather than permanently reinvest them. If
we decide to repatriate an amount of undistributed earnings in excess of those originally planned, we could be subject
to additional income tax.

The significant assumptions and estimates described in the preceding paragraphs are important contributors to
our ultimate effective tax rate for each year in addition fo our income mix from geographical regions. If any of our
assumptions or estimates were to change, or should our income mix from our geographical regions change, our
effective tax rate can be materially affected. Based on pre-tax income of $154.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004, each increase of $1.5 million in tax expense would increase our effective tax rate by 1%.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when fitle to a product has transferred and any significant customer obligations have
been fulfilied. Standard shipping terms are generally FOB shipping point in most countfries and, accordingly, title
transfers upon shipment. In countries where fitle cannot legally transfer before delivery, we defer revenue recognition
until delivery has occurred. Other than a few small software applications, Meftler-Toledo does not sell its sofiware
products without the related hardware instrument as the sofiware is embedded in the instrument. The Company’s
typical solution requires no significant production, modification or customization of the hardware or software that is
essential to the functionality of the products. We also generally maintain the right to accept or reject a product return
in our terms and conditions. To the extent the Company’s solutions have a post shipment obligation, such as
customer acceptance, revenue is deferred until the obligation has been completed. In addition, we also defer revenue
where installation is required, unless such installation is perfunctory. Distributor discounts are offset against revenue at
the time such revenue is recognhized. We also maintain accruals for outstanding credits. Revenues from service
contracts are recognized ratably over the contract period.

Warranty

The Company generally offers one-year warranties on most of its products. Product warranties are recorded ot
the time revenue is recognized for certain product shipments. While the Company engages in exiensive product
quality programs and processes, our warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates, material usage and
service costs incurred in correcting a product failure. If we experience claims or significant cost changes in material,
freight and vendor charges, our cost of goods sold could be affected.

New Accounting Standards

See Note 2 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

Forward-Looking Statements and Associated Risks

Some of the statements in this annual report and in documents incorporated by reference constitute “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the
U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These statements relate fo future events or our future financial performance,
including, but not limited o, strategic plans, potential growth opportfunities in both developed markets and emerging
markefs, impact of inflafion, currency and inferest rate fluctuations, planned research and development efforts,
product infroductions and innovation, manufacturing capacity, adequacy of facilities, expected customer demand,
meeting customer expectations, planned operational changes and productivity improvements, research and develop-
ment expenditures, competitors’ product development, expecled capital expenditures, future cash sources and
requirements, liquidity, impact of fong term incentive plans, expected pension contributions and payments, impact of
taxes, expected compliance with laws, changes in law and regulations, impact of environmental costs, expecled
trading volume and value of stocks and opfions, expected cost savings, impact of litigation, benefits and other effects
of completed or future acquisitions, which involve known and unknown risks, uncertainfies and other factors that may
cause our or our businesses’ aciual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements fo be marerially different
from those expressed or implied by any forward-looking sfatements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking
statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “could,” “would,” “should,” “expect” “plan,” “anficipate,”
“intend,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential” or “continue” or the negative of those terms or other compara-
bie ferminology. These statements are only predictions. Actual evenis or results may differ materially because of
market conditions in our industries or other factors. Moreover, we do nol nor does any other person, assume
responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of those statements. Unless otherwise required by applicable laws,
we disclaim any intention or obligation to publicly updafe or revise any of the forward-looking statements after the
date of this annual report fo conform them fo actual resulfs, whether as a resuit of new information, future evenfs, or
otherwise. All of the forward-looking stafements are qualified in their entirefy by reference fo the faclors discussed
under the captions “Factors affecting our future operating results” in the “Business” and “"Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulfs of Operations” sections of this annual report, which describe risks
and factors that could cause results fo differ materially from those projected in those forward-looking statements.
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We caution the reader that the above fist of risks and facfors that may affect resulls addressed in the forward-
looking staterments may not be exhaustive. Other sections of this annual report and other documents incorporated by
reference may describe additional risks or faclors that could adversely impact our business and financial perform-
ance. We operate in a continually changing business environment, and new risk factors emerge from time fo time.
Management cannot predict these new tisk factors, nor can it assess the impact, if any, of these new risk factors on
our businesses or the extent to which any factor, or combination of faclors, may cause actual resulfs fo differ
materially from those projected in any forward-locking statements. Accordingly, forward-looking statements shouid
not be relled upon as a prediction of actual resulls.

Item 7A. Quantitative ond Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Discussion of this item is included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dala

The financial statements required by this item are set forth starting on page F-1 and the related financial schedule
is set forth on page S-1.

ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountanis on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Conirols and Procedures and Changes in Infernal
Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of
the end of the period covered by this annual report under the supervision and with the participation of our disclosure
committee, our CFO and CEO. Based upon that evaluation, our GFO and CEO concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures are effective in permitting us fo comply with our disclosure obligations and ensure that the material
information required 10 be disclosed is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the rules and forms of the SEC. There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting
during the quarter ended December 31, 2004 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely 1o materially
affect, our controls over financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Confrol over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Our internal confrol over financial reporting is a process designed fo provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Company’s financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s infernal control over financial reporting as of Decem-
ber 31, 2004. In making this assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiza-
tions of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment,
we concluded that, as of December 31, 2004, the Company’s infernal control over financial reporting is effective.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2004 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers AG, an independent registered public account-
ing firm, as stafed in their report which appears on page F-2.
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PART fil

Hem 10. Direclors and Executive Officers of the Registrani

The directors and executive officers of the Company are set forth below. All directors hold office until the annual
meeting of shareholders following their election or until their successors are duly elected and qualified. Officers are
appointed by the Board of Directors and serve at the discretion of the Board.

Nome Age Position

Robert F. Spoerry ................... 49 President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Board of Directors

William P. Donnelly ................. 43 Chief Financial Officer

Peter Burker. ....................... 59 Head of Human Resources

Olivier A, Filliof ..................... 38 Head of Global Sales, Service and Marketing and
Head of Process Analytics

Jean-Lucien Gloor. . ................. 52 Head of Information Systems and Logistics

Timothy P. Haynes .................. 40 Head of Retail

Beat E. Lithi ....................... 43 Head of Laboratory

Us Widmer........................ 54 Head of Industrial

Philip Caldwell (1) .................. 85 Director

Francis A. Contino (1) ............... 59 Director

John T. Dickson (2) 3) ............. 59 Director

Philip H. Geier (2 .................. 70 Director

John D. Macomber (1) .............. 77 Director

Hans Ulrich Maerki (3)............... 58 Director

George M. Milne (3)................. 61 Director

Thomas P. Salice (1) (2) ............ 45 Director

(1) Audit Committee member
(2) Compensation Committee member
(3) Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee member

Robert F. Spoerry has been a Director since October 1996. Mr. Spoerry has been President and Chief Executive
Ofticer of the Company since 1993. He served as Head of Industrial and Retail (Europe) of the Company from 1987
to 1993. Mr. Spoerry has been Chairman of the Board of Directors since May 1998.

William P. Donnelly has been Chief Financial Officer of the Company from August 2004. From July 2002 to
August 2004, he was Head of Product Inspection and the Company’s liquid handling business, and he was Chief
Financial Officer of the Company from 1997 to July 2002,

Peter Biirker has been Head of Human Resources of the Company since 1995. From 1992 1o 1994 he was the
Company’s General Manager in Spain, and from 1989 fo 1991 he headed the Company’s operations in Italy.

Olivier A. Filllol has been Head of Global Sales, Service and Markefing of the Company since April 2004, and
Head of Process Analytics of the Company since June 1999. From June 1998 to June 1999 he served as General
Manager of Hi-Speed Checkweigher Inc., a subsidiary of the Company based in New York. Prior to joining the
Company, he was a Strategy Consultant with the international consulting firm Bain & Company working in the
Geneva, Paris, London and Sydney offices.

Jean-Lucien Gloor has been Head of information Systems and Logistics and Chief Information Officer of the
Company since March 2001, From 1999 until joining the Company, he served as Head of Central Server Platforms
at Credit Suisse Financial Services. Prior to 1999, he held various senior information systems positions during fifteen
years with The Dow Chemical Company.
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Timothy P. Haynes has been Head of Refail of the Company since October 2001. From 1999 to 2001 he
served as Business Unit Leader for the Company’s Transport, Shipping, Mail and Components business. Prior to
Jjoining the Company, he held various management positions at Emerson Electric in its process control and
measurement businesses, including from 1997 to 1999 when he served as Vice President of Marketing and Product
Development in its Process Analytic Division.

Beat E. Liithi has been Head of Laboratory of the Company since March 2003. From 1998 until returning to the
Company, he served as Chief Executive Officer of Feintool International Holding, a Swiss public company. Feintool is
a global technology and systems provider in fineblanking/forming and assembly/automation as well as a global
supplier of metal and plastic components. From 1990 fo 1998 he held various management positions with the
Company in Switzerland.

Urs Widmer has been Head of Industrial since 1999. From 1984 to 1999 he served in various management
funcfions within the Company, including most recently Head of Standard Industrial (Europe) from 1995 to 1999.
Prior to 1984 he held various management positions with Siemens, a global manufacturer of solutions for informa-
tion and communications, automation and control, power and transportation.

Philip Caldwell has been a Director since October 1996. Prior fo May 1998, Mr. Caldwell served as Chairman
of the Board of Directors. Mr. Caldwell spent 32 years at Ford Motor Company, where he served as Chairman of the
Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer from 1979 to 1985 and a Director from 1973 to 1990. He served as a
Director and Senior Managing Director of Lehman Brothers Inc. and its predecessor, Shearson Lehman Brothers
Holdings, Inc., from 1985 to February 1998. Mr. Caldwell is also a Director of the Mexico Fund, Russeli Reynolds
Associates, Inc. and Waters Corporafion.

Francis A. Contino has been a Director since October 2004. Mr. Contino is Executive Vice President — Strategic
Planning and Chief Financial Officer of McCormick & Company, Inc. He is @ member of the Management Committee
and has been a member of the Board of Directors and Chief Financial Officer of McCormick since joining the
company in 1998. Prior to joining McCormick, Mr. Contino was Managing Pariner of the Baltimore office of Ernst &
Young.

John T. Dickson has been a Director since March 2000. Mr. Dickson has been President and Chief Executive
Officer of Agere Systems Inc. since August 2000. Previously, Mr. Dickson had been Executive Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer of Lucent Technologies” Microelectronics and Communications Technologies Group since
October 1999. He joined AT&T Corp. in 1993 os Vice President of its Integrated Circuit business unit, moved fo Lucent
following its spin-off in 1996, and was named Chief Operating Officer of Lucent’s Microelectronics Group in 1997,
Mr. Dickson is also a Director of Agere Systems Inc. and the Semiconductor Industry Association and a member of the
Board of Trustees of Lehigh Valley Health Network.

Philip H. Geier has been a Director since July 2001. Mr. Geier was Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer of the Interpublic Group of Companies, Inc. from 1980 to 2000 and was a Director of Interpublic since 1975.
Mr. Geier is also a Director of AEA Investors LLC, Alcon, Inc., Fiduciary Trust Co. International, Foot Locker, Inc. and
Intermedia Advertising Group.

John D. Macomber has been a Director since October 1996. He has been a principal of JDM Investment Group
since 1992. He was Chairman and President of the Export-Import Bank of the United States (an agency of the
U.S. Government) from 1989 to 1992. From 1973 to 1986 Mr. Macomber was Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of Celanese Corporation. Prior to that, Mr. Macomber was a Senior Partner of McKinsey & Company.
Mr. Macomber is also a Director of AEA Investors LLC and Lehman Brothers Holdings inc.

Hans Ulrich Maerki has been a Director since September 2002. Mr. Maerki has been the Chairman and
General Manager of IBM Europe/Middle East/Africa since July 2003, He is also a member of the World Wide
Management Council of IBM Corporation. From August 2001 to July 2003, Mr. Maerki was Chairman of IBM Europe/
Middle East/Africa and from 1996 fo July 2001, Mr. Maerki was General Manager of IBM Global Services, Europe/
Middle East/Africa. Mr. Maerki has been with IBM in various positions since 1973. Mr. Maerki is also a Director of
ABB Lid.
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George M. Milne, Jr., Ph.D., has been a Director since September 1999. From 1970 to July 2002, Dr. Milne
held various management positions with Pfizer Corporation, including most recently Executive Vice President, Pfizer
Global Research and Development and President, Worldwide Strafegic and Operations Management. Dr. Miine was
also a Senior Vice President of Pfizer Inc. and a member of the Pfizer Management Council. He was President of
Central Research from 1993 to July 2002 with global responsibility for Pfizer's Human and Veterinary Medicine
Research and Development. Dr. Milne is also a Director of Athersys, Inc., Charles River Laboratories, Inc. and Conor
Medsystems, Inc.

Thomas P. Salice has been a Director since October 1996. Mr. Salice is a Managing Member of Sceptra Capital
Pariners, LLC, a private equity firm. Previously, he was President of AEA Investors LLC, a private equity firm, from
January 1999, Chief Executive Officer from January 2000, and Vice Chairman from September 2002 to December
2004. Mr. Salice is also a Director of Agere Systems Inc. and Waters Corporation. He also serves on the Board of
Trustees of Fordham University.

On February 3, 2005, Mr. Caldwell announced to the Company that he intends 1o retire at the end of his current
term and will not be running for reelection in 2005.

Audit Commifttee

The Company has a separately designated standing Audit Committee established in accordance with Sec-
tion 3(a)(58)(A) of the Exchange Act. The members of the Audit Committee are Philip Caldwell, Francis Contino,
John Macomber (Chair) and Thomas Salice.

Audit Committee Financia! Expert

The Board of Directors has determined that each member of the Audit Committee is an qudit committee financial
expert as defined by Item 401(h) of Regulation S-K of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”) and is independent within the meaning of Item 7(d)(3)(iv) of Schedule 14A of the Exchange Act.

Code of Ethics

The Company has adopted a code of business conduct and ethics for directors, officers (including the principal
executive officer, principal financial officer and confroller) and employees, known as the Code of Conduct. The Code
of Conduct is available on the Company’s website at hitp://www.mt.com under Investor Relations/Corporate Govern-
ance. Stockholders may request a free copy of the Code of Conduct from:

Investor Relations
Meftler-Toledo International Inc.
1900 Polaris Parkway
Columbus, OH 43240

U.SA

Phone: +1 614 438 4748
Fax: +1 614 438 4646
E-mail: mary.finnegan@mt.com

Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Company has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines, which are available on the Company’s website of
hitp://www.mt.com under Investor Relations/Corporate Governance. Stockholders may request a free copy of the
Corporate Governance Guidelines from the address and phone numbers set forth under “Code of Ethics” above.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Information regarding Section 16(a) beneficial ownership reporting compliance is set forth under “General
Information — Compliance with Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Requirements” in the Proxy Statement
for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “2005 Proxy Statement”), which information is incorporated
herein by reference.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information appearing in the sections captioned “Board of Directors — General Information,” “Executive
Compensation” and “Additional Information — Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in the
2005 Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Relaled Stockholder
Matters

The information appearing in the section “Share Owhership“ in the 2005 Proxy Statement is incorporated by
reference herein.
ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

None.

item 14. Principal Accountfant Fees and Services

information appearing in the section “Audit Committee Report”” in the 2005 Proxy Statement is hereby incorpo-
rated by reference.

PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
{a) Exhibits, Financial Statements and Schedules:
1. Financial Statemenis. See Index 1o Consolidated Financial Stalements included on page F-1.
2. Financial Statement Schedule. See Schedule i, which is included on page S-1.
3. List of Exhibits. See Index of Exhibits included on page E-1.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K:
Date Filed Description

February 9, 2005 Press release announcing financiol results for the fourth quarter and full
year ended December 31, 2004

Press release announcing amendment of the Company’s by-laws
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Meftler-Toledo International Inc.
(Registrant)

Date: February 25, 2005 By: /s/ ROBERT F. SPOERRY

Robert F. Spoerry
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Annual Report on
Form 10-K has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant as of the date set out above
and in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title
fs/ ROBERT F. SPOERRY Chairman of the Board, President and
Robert F. Spoerry Chief Executive Officer
/s/ WILLIAM P. DONNELLY Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
William P. Donnelly (Principal financi_al and accounting
officer)
Director
Philip Caldwell
/s/  FRANCIS A. CONTINO Director
Francis A. Contino
/s/  JOHN T. DICKSON Director
John T. Dickson
/s/ PHILIP H. GEIER Director
Phitip H. Geier
/s/ JOHN D. MACOMBER Director
John D. Macomber
/s/  HANS ULRICH MAERKI Director
Hans Ulrich Maerki
/s/ GEORGE M. MILNE Director
George M. Miine
/s/ THOMAS P. SALICE Director

Thomas P. Salice
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Exhiblt

3.1
3.2
4.6

10.10
10.11
10.20
10.21
10.22
10.31

10.32

10.33

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44
10.45

10.46
10.47
10.48
10.49*
21
23.1*
31.1*

31.2*
32*

Description

Amended and Restated Centificate of Incorporation of the Company (1)
Amended By-laws of the Company, effective as of the 2005 annual meeting (Aprii 27, 2005) (14)

Rights Agreement dated as of August 26, 2002 between the Company and Melion Investor Services LLC,
as Rights Agent, which includes as Exhibit A thereto, the Certificate of Designation, as Exhibit B thereto,
the Form of Rights Certificate, and as Exhibit C thereto, the Summary of Rights to Purchase Preferred
Shares (9)

Credit Agreement, dated as of November 12, 2003 (2)

Indenture, dated as of November 12, 2003 (12)

1997 Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan (3)

Amendment to the 1997 Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan (4)
Mettler-Toledo International Inc. 2004 Equity Incentive Plan (13)

Regulations of the Performance Oriented Bonus System (POBS) — Incentive System for the
Management of Mettler Toledo, effective as of November 5, 1998 (5)

Regulations of the POBS Plus — incentive Scheme for Senior Management of Mettler Toledo, effecnve as
of March 14, 2000 (6)

Regulations of the POBS PLUS — Incentive Scheme for Members of the Group Management of Mettler
Toledo, effective as of March 7, 2000 (6)

Employment Agreement between Robert Spoerry and Mettler-Toledo AG, dated as of October 30, 1996
)

indemnification Agreement between Robert Spoerry and Meftler-Toledo International Inc., dated June 6,
2002 (10)

Employment Agreement between William Donnelly and Mettter-Toledo GmbH, dated as of November 10,
1997 (1)

Employment Agreement between Olivier Filliol and Mettier-Toledo GmbH, dated as of May 21, 2001 (8)

Indemnification Agreement between Olivier Filliol and Mettler-Toledo International Inc., dated June 6,
2002 (10)

Employment Agreement between Beat Luethi and Metfller-Toledo Infernafional Inc., dated as of
October 31, 2002 (11)

Indemnification Agreement between Beat Luethi and Mettier-Toledo Infernafional Inc., dated March 31,
2003 (11)

Employment Agreement between Urs Widmer and Meftier-Toledo Infernationat Inc., dated as of May 11,
2001 (8)

Indemnification Agreement befween Urs Widmer and Meftier-Toledo Internafional Inc., dated as of
June 6, 2002

Subsidiaries of the Company

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant fo Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of 2002
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant fo Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Report on Form 10-K dated March 13, 1998

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Report on Form 10-Q dated November 13, 2003

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-35597)
(4) Incorporated by reference fo the Company’s Report on Form 10-Q dated August 15, 2000

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Report on Form 10-K dated March 18, 1999

(6) Incorporated by reference fo the Company’s Report on Form 10-K dated March 24, 2000

(7) Incorporated by reference fo the Company’s Report on Form 10-K dated March 31, 1997
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(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Report on Form 10-K dated March 4, 2002
(9) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-K/A filed on August 29, 2002
(10) Incorporated by reference fo the Company’s Report on Form 10-K dated March 14, 2003
(11) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Report on Form 10-Q dated August 4, 2003
(12) Incorporated by reference fo the Company’s Report on Form 10-K dated March 15, 2004
(13) Incorporated by reference o the Company’'s Form DEF 14-A filed March 29, 2004
(14) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K dafed February 9, 2005
*  Filed herewith '
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REPCRT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of Meitler-Toledo International Inc.

We have completed an infegrated audit of Meftler-Toledo Internafional Inc.’s 2004 consoiidated financial
statements and of its infernal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its 2003 and
2002 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under llem 15(a)(1) present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Mettler-Toledo International Inc. and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under
ltem 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with
the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financiat statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is 10 express an opinion on these financial statements
and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the cudit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management's Report on Infernal Control Over
Financial Reporting appearing under ltem 9A, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004 based on criteria established in Infernal Control — Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material
respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Infernal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is 10 express opinions on management's assessment and on the effectiveness of
the Company'’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control
over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of ihe Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we pian and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal controt over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control
over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of infernal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluaiing the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and
performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed fo provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain fo the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that fransactions are recorded as necessary 0 permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
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assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of ifs inherent fimitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstate-
ments. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorafe.

/8/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS AG
PricewaterhouseCoopers AG

Zurich, Switzerland
February 25, 2005
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METTLER-TOLEDO INTERNATIONAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31
(In thousands, excepi share data) -

2004 2003 2002

Net sales

Products. ... . $ 1,082,097 §$ 1,014,722 § 954,081

SeIVICE . 322,357 289,709 259,626
Totalnetsales ... ... . .. .. . . 1,404,454 1,304,431 1,213,707
Cost of sales

Products. . ... 516,118 498,207 469,453

Service ... ... 205,929 188,048 176,517
Gross profit. .. ... . . 682,407 618,176 567,737
Research and development .. ....... ... ... ... ... ..., 83,217 78,003 70,625
Selling, general and administrative .. ........................ 419,780 372,822 331,959
Amottization . ... ... 12,256 11,724 9,332
Inferest expense . ... ... 12,888 14,153 17,209
Other charges, net ............................ e 42 4,563 28,202

Earnings before faxes. . ........ ... ... 154,224 136,911 110,410
Provision for1axes . . ........... . 48,267 41,073 9,989

NEt BOMINGS . . - o\ oo $ 107957 $ 95838 $ 100,421
Basic earnings per common share:

Net earnings. .. ... . S 244 § 215 § 227

Weighted average number of common shares ............... 44,237,214 44,473,913 44,280,605
Diluted earnings per common share:

Net eamings. ... ... $ 237 § 211 S 2.21

Weighted average number of common shares .. ............. 45,483,969 45,508,847 45,370,053

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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METTLER-TOLEDO INTERNATIONAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31
(In thousands, except share data)

2004 2003
ASSETS
Current gssets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . ....... .. ... . .. i S 67,176 $ 45116
Trade accounts receivable, less allowances of $9,759 in 2004
and $10,4891in 2003 ... ... ... . 271,097 249,353
Inventories, less allowances of $35,669 in 2004 and $38,745in 2003 ........ 156,539 151,764
Current deferred tax assefs, Net. .. ... . . i e 27,487 27,644
Other currenf assefs and prepaid expenses. . ........... ... ... 30,058 31,660
Total curment QSSelS .. .. ... . 552,357 505,537
Property, plant and equipment, net . ... ... .. ... 242,709 231,512
GOoOaWIll ... e 433,675 421,940
Other intangible assets, Net . . ... . i 126,506 129,406
Non-current deferred tax assets, net . . .......... ... . .. . . 72,847 40,683
Other nON-CUIeNt ASSeIS . . ... ... e 51,978 58,198
TOMal O80T . .. oo §1,480,072  $1,387.276
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Trade accounts payable ......... .. ... . . . ... $ 85128 S 68243
Accrued and other ligbilities . ......... .. .. e 90,466 97,966
Accrued compensation and related items . . ... ... .. 74,678 56,575
Deferred revenue and customer prepayments . . ............... i, 26,176 20,759
Taxes payable . ... .. 59,556 51,347
Current deferred tax liabilities . ... ... ... .. ... . 5,328 14,742
Short-term bormowIngs . ... .. ... e 6,913 18,277
Total current liabilities . ... ... ... . 348,246 327,909
Long-termdebt .................. e 196,290 223,239
Pension and other post-retitement liabilities . . ........ ... ... .. .. ... ... ... 124,435 131,448
Non-current deferred 10XeS ... ... .. . 81,927 46,519
Other non-current liabilities . . ............. ... . . . .. 8,288 4,165
Total liabilities .. ........ ... .. e 759,186 733,280
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share; authorized 10,000,000 shares . ... .. — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value per share; authorized 125,000,000 shares;
issued 44,780,211 and 44,582,017 shares, outstanding 43,366,139 and
44,582,017 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively . ............... 448 446
Additional paid-in capital . ........ . ... 491,784 471,628
Treasury stock at cost (1,414,072 shares in 2004 and O shares in 2003 .. ... .. (67.404) —
Retgined @amINgS . . ... .. o 293,093 200,216
Accumulated other comprehensive income (l0ss) .............. ..., 2,965 (18,294)
Total shareholders” equity . .......... ... ... . 720,886 653,996
Commitments and confingencies ........ ... ... i — —
Total liabilities and shareholders” equity . ................ ... ............. $1,480,072 $1,387,276

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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METTLER-TOLEDO INTERNATIONAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31
(In thousands, excepi share data)

Additional Acctan}‘ululed
tiona ther
Comman Stock Paid-in Treasury Retained  Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capltal Stock Earnings income (Loss) Tota}
Balance at December 31, 2001 ...... 44,145,742 $441 $455,684 § — § 3,957 $(71,808) $ 388,184
Exercise of stock options . ... ........ 239,078 3 3,529 — — — 3,532
Comprehensive income:
Neteamnings.................... — — — — 100,42} — 100,421
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedging
arrangements ... ... ... — — — — —_ (2,805) (2,805)
Change in currency transiation
adjustment ............ ... ... — — — - — 26,933 26,933
Minimum pension liability
adjustment(@) . ............... — — — — — (13,879) (13,879)
Comprehensive income ............. 110,670
Balance at December 31, 2002 ... ... 44,384,820 $444 $459,213 § — $104,378 $(61,649) S 502,386
Exercise of stock options . ........... 197,197 2 3,575 — — — 3,577
Tax benefit resulting from exercise of
cerfain employee stock options . . . .. — — 8,840 — — — 8,840
Comprehensive income:
Neteamnings.................... — — — — 95,838 — 95,838
Unrealized gain on cash flow
hedging arrangements . . ........ — — — — — 3,960 3,960
Chaonge in currency franslation
adjustment . ............ .. ... - — — — — 34,209 34,209
Minimum pension liability
adjustment (@) ................ — — — — — 5,186 5,186
Comprehensive income . ............ 139,193
Balance at December 31, 2003 ...... 44,582,017 $446 $471,628 $ — $200,216 $(18,294)  § 653,996
Exercise of stock options . ........... 992,622 2 4,260 36,385  (15,080) — 25,567
Repurchases of common stock . ...... (2,208,500) — — (103,789) — — (103,789)
Tax benefit resulting from exercise of
certain employee stock options . . ... — — 5,037 — — — 5,037
Reversal of deferred tax valuation
gllowance...................... - — 10,859 — — — 10,859
Comprehensive income:
Neteamings.................... — — — — 107,957 — 107,957
Unrealized gain on cash flow
hedging arrangements . ......... — — — — — 436 436
Change in currency franslation
adjustment . ...l — — — — — 23,087 23,087
Minimum pension liabifity
adjustment (@) . ............... — — — — — (2,264) (2,264)
Comprehensive income ............. 129,216
Baiance at December 31, 2004 ... . .. 43,366,139 $448 $491,784 §$ (67,404) $293,093 S 2,965 $ 720,886

() The minimum pension liability adjustments in 2004, 2003 and 2002 are net of deferred fax benefits of $1,117, $8,215 and
$6,650, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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METTLER-TOLEDO {NTERNATIONAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31
(In thousands)

2004 2003 2002
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net @amings . ... ... o $107,957 S 95,838 $100,421
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Deprecialion. .. ... .. . 26,668 25,086 25,392
Amortization. . .. ... .. 12,256 11,724 9,332
Other ... e 569 13 2,950
Increase (decrease) in cash resulting from changes in:
Trade accounts receivable, net ......... ... . .l (11,337 3,516 13,663
INVENtOMIES . ... o e 4,449 8,773 7,378
Other cumrent @sselS . ... ... o 4,584 1,708 6,061
Trade accounts payable .......... ... .. ... L 12,934 (8,452) 919
Taxes payable ............ 6,577 19,440)  (13,340)
Accruals and other (@) . ........ ... .. ... 1,336 (1,535)  (37.366)
Net cash provided by operating activities . ................... 165,993 117,231 115,410
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment ................ 1,819 2,092 1,995
Purchase of property, plant and equipment . ................ .. ..... (27,882) (27,152)  (33,157)
ACQUISIHIONS ... ... (2,287) (4,450) (21,305)
Net cash used in investing activities . ....................... (28,350) (29,510) (52,467
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from bOmfOWINgs. .. ... ... 81,027 248,726 81,425
Repayments of borrowings .......... ... (121,631) (325,948) (142,609)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options .. ............ .. ... . ...... 25,567 3,577 3,532
Repurchases of common stock .. ............ .. ... il (102,397) — —
Refinancing fees . ... i — (3,077) —
Net cash used in financing activities. .. ............ ... ... .. (117,434) (76,720)  (57,652)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalenis .......... 1,851 2,688 (1,585)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents. . ......................... 22,060 13,689 3,706
Gash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of period. . ....... ... .. ... 45,116 31,427 27,721
Endof period. . ... .. . . $ 67,176 § 45116 $ 31,427
Supplemental disclosures of cash fiow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
IMtereSt . $ 12426 $ 13955 S 16,249
TOXES . et e e $ 39,798 S 40,451 § 31,387

(a) Accruals and other include payments for restructuring and refated activities of $4.0 million, $16.8 million and $11.1 million
in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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METTLER-TOLEDO INTERNATIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data, urless otherwise stated)

1. BUSINESS DESCRIPTION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Mettler-Toledo International Inc. (“Meftler-Toledo™ or the “Company”) is a global supplier of precision instru-
ments and services. The Company manufactures weighing instruments for use in laboratory, industrial, packaging,
logistics and tood retailing applications. The Company also manufactures several related analytical instruments, and
provides automated chemistry solutions used in drug and chemical compound discovery and development. In
~ addition, the Company manufactures metal detection and other end-of-line inspection systems used in production
and packaging, and provides solutions for use in ceriain process analytics applications. The Company’s primary
manufacturing facilities are located in Switzerland, the United States, Germany, the United Kingdom and China. The
Company’s principal executive offices are located in Greifensee, Switzerland.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP™) and include all entities in which the Company has control,
which are its majority owned subsidiaries.

All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. Investments in which the Company has
voting rights between 20% and 50% are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as well as
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the current year presentation.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with original maturity dates of three months or less.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost, which includes direct materials, labor
and overhead, is generally determined using the first in, first out (FIFO) method. The estimated net realizable value is
based on assumptions for future demand and related pricing. Reserves for excess and obsolete inventories are
established based on forecast usage, orders and technological obsolescence.

Long-Lived Assels

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assefs as follows:

Buildings and improvements ......... ... ... . ... .. .. ... ... 15 to 50 years

Machinery and equipment ........... . ... 3 to 12 years

Computer software . ........ ... .. ... . ... 3 1o 5 years

Leasehold improvements .................. ... Shorter of useful life or lease term

b) Capitalized Software

In accordance with Statement of Position 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Soffware Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use” ("SOP 98-17), the Company expenses all internal-use software costs incurred in the
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METTLER-TOLEDO INTERNATIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
(In thousands, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

preliminary project stage and capitalizes certain direct costs associated with the development and purchase of
internal-use software within property, plant and equipment. Capitalized costs are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the software, generally not exceeding five years.

¢) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142""), goodwill, representing
the excess of purchase price over the net asset value of companies acquired, and indefinite lived intangible assets are
not amortized, but are reviewed for impairment annually in the fourth quarter, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that an asset might be impaired. The annual evaluation is based on valuation models that
estimate fair value based on expected future cash flows and profitability projections.

Other intangible assefs include indefinite lived assets and assefs subject fo amortization. Where applicable,
amontization is charged on o straight-line basis over the expected period to be benefited. The Company assesses the
recoverability of other intangible assets subject to amortization in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” ("SFAS 144").

Accounting for Impairment of Long-Lived Assefs

In accordance with SFAS 144, the Company assesses the need to record impairment losses on long-lived assets
with finite lives when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of assets may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when future estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to
result from use of the asset are less than the asset’s carrying value, with the loss measured at fair value based on
discounted expected cash flows.

Taxation

The Company files tax returns in each jurisdiction in which it operates. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences afiributable fo differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryfor-
wards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in the respective jurisdictions in which
the Company operates. In assessing the ability to realize deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is
more likely than: not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Deferred taxes are not provided on the unremitted earnings of subsidiaries outside of the United States when it is
expected that these earnings are permanently reinvested. Such earnings may become taxable upon the sale or
liquidation of these subsidiaries or upon the remittance of dividends. Deferred taxes are provided when the Company
no longer considers subsidiary earnings fo be permanently invested, such as in situations where the Company’s
subsidiaries plan to make future dividend distributions.

Currency Translation and Transactions

The reporting currency for the consolidoted financial statements of the Company is the U.S. dollar. The functional
currency for the Company’s operations is generally the applicable local currency. Accordingly, the assets and
liabilities of companies whose functional currency is other than the U.S. dollar are included in the consolidated
financial statements by franslating the assets and liabilities into the reporting currency at the exchange rates
applicable at the end of the reporting period. The statements of operations and cash flows of such non-U.S. dotlar
functional currency operations are translated af the monthly average exchange rates during the year. Translation
gains or losses are accumulated in other comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidated statements of sharehold-
ers’ equity.
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METTLER-TOLEDO INTERNATIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
(In thousands, except share date, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when fitle fo a product has transferred and any significant customer obligations have
been fulfilled. Standard shipping terms are generally FOB shipping point in most countries and, accordingly, fitle
transfers upon shipment. In countries where fitle cannot legally transfer before delivery, we defer revenue recognition
until delivery has occurred. Other than a few small software applications, Mettler-Toledo does not sell its software
products without the reiated hardware instrument as the software is embedded in the instrument. The Company’s
typical solution requires no significant production, modification or customization of the hardware or software that is
essential to the functionality of the products. We also generally maintain the right fo accept or reject a product retum
in our ferms and conditions. To the extent the Company’s solutions have a post shipment obligation, such as
customer acceptance, revenue is deferred until the obligation has been completed. In addition, we also defer revenue
where instaliation is required, unless such installation is perfunctory. Distributor discounts are offset against revenue at
the time such revenue is recognized. We also maintain accruals for outstanding credits. Revenues from service
contracts are recognized ratably over the contract period.

Research and Development

Research and development costs primarily consist of salaries, consulting and other cosis. The Company
expenses these costs as incurred.

Warranty

The Company generally offers one-year warranties on most of its products. Product warranties are recorded at
the time revenue is recognized for certain product shipments. While the Company engages in extensive product
quality programs and processes, our warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates, material usage and
service costs incurred in correcting a product failure.

Earnings per Common Share

In accordance with the treasury stock method, the Company has included 1,246,755, 1,034,934 and
1,089,448 equivalent shares in the calculation of diluted weighted average number of common shares for the years
ending December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, relating to outstanding stock options.

Outstanding opfions to purchase 748,813, 1,955,938 and 1,360,600 shares of common stock for the years
ending December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, have been excluded from the calculation of diluted
weighted average number of common shares as such options would be anti-dilutive.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company applies the intrinsic valuation methodology under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations in accounting for its stock option plan.
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METTLER-TOLEDO INTERNATIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
(In thousands, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plan been defermined based upon the fair value of such
awards af the grant date, consistent with the methods of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” the Company’s net earnings and basic and diluted net earnings per
common share for the years ended December 31 would have been as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Net earnings:
Asreported . ........ ... ... ... S 107,957 $§ 95838 S 100,421
Compensation eXpense . ........................ (7.290) (6,748) (5.809)
Proforma....... ... . ... .. .. $ 100667 S 89090 S 94612
Basic earnings per common share:
Asreported. . ... ... ... ... S 244 S 215 § 2.27
Compensation eXpense ......................... (0.16) (0.15) (0.13)
Proforma......... ... ... i $ 228 § 200 § 2.14
Weighted average number of common shares ......... 44,237,214 44,473,913 44,280,605
Diluted earnings per common share:
Asreported. .. ... ... ... ... . ... ... ... $ 237 $ 211§ 2.21
Compensation expense .................. ... ... (0.15) (0.15) (0.12)
Proforma.............. ... .. i, $ 222 $ 196 § 2.09
Weighted average number of common shares . ........ 45,281,189 44,508,847 45,370,053

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company has only limited involvement with derivative financial instruments and does not use them for
trading purposes. As described more fully in Note 5, the Company enters into foreign currency forward exchange
contracts to economically hedge certain shor-ferm intercompany transactions involving its inlernational businesses.
Such contracts limit the Company’s exposure to both favorable and unfavorable currency fluctuations on the items
they hedge. These contracts are adjusted to refiect market values as of each balance sheet date, with the resulting
changes in fair value being recognized in the appropriate financial statement caption in the income statement
consistent with the underlying position,

The Company also enters into certain interest rate swap agreements in order to manage its exposure to changes
in interest rates. The differential paid or received on interest rate swap agreements is recognized as interest expense
over the life of the agreements as incurred. The Company’s floating fo fixed inferest rate swap agreements are
generally cash flow hedges, while the fixed to floating inferest rate swap agreements are generally fair value hedges.
The change in fair value of outstanding interest rate swap agreements that are effective cash flow hedges is included
in the Company’s consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity. The change in fair value of outstanding interest rafe
swap agreements that are effective as fair value hedges is recognized in earnings as incurred and is offset by the
change in fair vaiue of the hedged item.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s revenue base is widely diversified by geographic region and by individual customer. The
Company’s products are utilized in many different industries, although extensively in the pharmaceutical, food and
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METTLER-TOLEDO INTERMATIGNAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
(In thousands, except share datc, unless otherwise stated)

beverage, fransportation and logistics and chemicals industries. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of
its customers’ financial condition and, generally, requires no collateral from its customers.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financia!l Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Statement No. 123R, “Share-Based
Payment” ("SFAS 123R"). SFAS 123R replaces FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion”, and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”. SFAS 123R requires public
companies fo recognize the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments. The
cost of such service will be based on the grant-date fair value of the equity award (with limited exceptions) over the
period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award. Disclosure of the effect of
expensing the fair value of equity compensation is currently required under SFAS 123 (see previous page).
SFAS 123R will become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company is in the process of
evaluating the cost of its equity awards in accordance with SFAS 123R.

In November 2004, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 151, “Inventory Costs” ("SFAS 151"), an amendment
of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4. The amendments made by Statement 151 require that abnormal amounts of idle facility
expense, freight, handling costs and wasted materials (spoilage) should be recognized as current-period charges and
by requiring the allocation of fixed production overheads to inventory based on the normal capacity of the production
facilities. The guidance is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The
Company is in the process of evaluating the impact, if any, that will result from adopting SFAS 151.

3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company spent approximately $2.3 million and
$4.5 million, respectively, on acquisitions and additional consideration related to earn-out periods associated with
acquisitions consummated in prior years. Goodwill recognized in connection with these acquisition payments totaled
$1.5 million and $4.4 million, respectively, which is included in the Company’s Principal U.S. Operations, Principal
Central European Operations and Asian segments in 2004 and in the Company’s Principal U.S. Operations segment
in 2003. The Company accounted for the acquisition payments and additional consideration using the purchase
method of accounting.

During 2002, the Company spent approximately $21.3 million on acquisitions, including the acquisition of
Soffechnics Inc. and approximately $4.2 million of additional consideration related to earn-out periods associated
with acquisitions consummated in prior yeors. Soffechnics is a provider of in-store retail item management software
solutions. Goodwill recognized in connection with these acquisition payments totaled S$18.8 million, which is
primarily included in the Company’s Principal U.S. Operations segment. The Company accounted for the acquisition
payments using the purchase method of accounting.

A reconciliation of the change in goodwill during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 is provided in
Note 7 to these consolidated financial statements.

The terms of certain of our acquisitions in 2004 and earlier years provide for possible additional earn-out
payments. The Company does not currently believe it will make any material payments relating 1o such earn-outs.
Any additional earn-out payments incurred will be treated as additional purchase price and accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting.
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4. INVENTORIES, NET
inventories, net of allowances consisted of the following at December 31:

2004 2003
Raw materigls and parts . . . ... ... . $ 73,607 § 71,950
WOTK-IN-PrOgresS . . ..o e 32,323 32,432
Finished GOOdS . ... ... i 50,609 47,382

§156,539 §$151,764

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As described in Note 9, on November 12, 2003 the Company completed a five-year $300 million credit facility
and the issuance of $150 million seven-year Senior Notes. The proceeds from this refinancing were immediately used
to repay all of the Company's borrowings under its former credit agreement, which was then terminated. In
connection with this refinancing, the Company unwound the outstanding swap agreements that were cash flow
hedges relating to its previous credit facility. The resulting foss of $1.0 million was settled in cash and was charged to
interest expense over the original life of the agreements up to May 2004.

Also in connection with the refinancing, the Company entered into a new interest rate swap agreement,
designated as a fair value hedge, which changes the fixed interest obligation associated with $30 million of the
Senior Notes into a floating rate. This agreement has a maturity date of November 15, 2010. Under the swap, the
Company will receive a fixed interest rate of 4.85% (i.e. the same rate as the Senior Notes) and pay inferest at a rate
of LIBOR plus 0.22%. At December 31, 2004, the fair value of the swap was approximately $0.4 million.

At December 31, 2004, the Company had outstanding foreign currency forward confracts in the amount of
$110.8 million, in order to economically hedge short-term intercompany balances with its foreign businesses. The
fair value of these contracts was not materially different from the carrying value at December 31, 2004,

The Company may be exposed to credit losses in the event of nonperformance by the counferparties to ifs
derivative financial instrument contracts. Counterparties are established banks and financial instifutions with high
credit ratings. The Company does not believe that such counterparties will not be able to fully satisfy their obligations
under these confracts.

The fair values of all derivative financial instruments are estimated based on current seftlement prices of
comparable confracts obtained from dealer quotes. The values represent the estimated amount the Company would
pay or receive o terminate the agreements at the reporting date, taking info account current creditworthiness of the
counterparties.
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property, plant and equipment, net, consisted of the following at December 31:

2004 2003
LaNd ... e $ 57,478 $ 52,119
Buildings and leasehold improvements . ............ ... .. ... ... ..... 156,918 143,755
Machinery and equipment . ... ... . ... 236,874 225,307
Computer SOffWAre . .. ... . 5,016 5414
456,286 426,595
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ....... ... ... ... ... ... (213,577) (195,083)

$ 242,709  $ 231,512

7. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table shows the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31:

2004 2003
Balance at beginning of year .. .......... ... $421,940  $408,351
Goodwill acquired ... ... .. .. 1,461 4,363
Foreign currency translationand other .................. ... ... ... ...... 10,274 9,226
Balance atend of year . ... .. ... e $433,675 $421,940

In accordance with SFAS 142, goodwill and indefinite lived assets are reviewed for impairment on an annual
basis in the fourth quarter. The Company complefed its impairment review under SFAS 142 and defermined that,
through December 31, 2004, there had been no impairment of these assets.

The components of other intangible assets ds of December 31 are as follows:

2004 2003

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Customer relationships .................... ... $ 71,329 $ (5,216) $ 70,955 § (3,424)
Proven technology and pafents . ............... 28,651 (11,655) 27,058 (8,336)
Tradename (finite life). . ...................... 1,499 (447) 893 79
Tradename (indefinite life) .................... 22,434 — 22,434 —
Intellectual property license (indefinite life)........ 19,905 — 19,905 —

$143,818  §(17,312) $141,245  §$(11,839)

The annual aggregate amortization expense based on the current balance of other intangible assets for each of
the next five years is estimated at $4.2 million. The non-indefinite lived intangible assets are amortized on a straight-
line basis over periods ranging from 7 to 45 years.

The Company had amortization expense associated with the above imangible assets of $4.1 million and
$3.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company’s intangible assets include a $19.9 million indefinite life intangible asset relating to an intellectual
property license. This license is currently subject fo litigation with the grantor. While the Company believes its rights
under the license will be upheld, if they were not to be upheld, expected cash flows generated by the license would be
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reduced and the related $19.9 million asset could be impaired, causing a non-cash charge of up to $14 million after
tax. Management does not believe this outcome or any other consequences of the case will have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

8. WARRANTY

The Company’s accrual for product warranties is included in accrued and other liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet. Changes to the Company’s accrual for product warranties for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003 are as follows:

2004 2003
Balance at beginning of period . ....... ... ... ... $10,121 $ 8,850
Accruals for waranties . .. ... ... e 12,346 12,429
Foreign currency translation ... .......... ... . ... 489 953
Payments/utilizations ... ... ... .. (12,473) Q12,111
Balance atend of period . .......... ... $10,483 $10121

9. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-ferm debt consisted of the following at December 31:

2004 2003
$150 million Senior Notes, inferest at 4.85%, due November 15, 2010 .. ... $150,395 $150,402
Less: unamorized discount. . . ... ... (208) (243)

| 150,187 150,159
Revolving credit facilities, interest af LIBOR plus 0.6% .................... 46,108 73,080

$196,290  $223,239

November 2003 Refinancing

On November 12, 2003, the Company completed a $300 million credit facility (“the $300 million Credit
Facility” or “the Credit Facility’”) and the issuance of $150 million seven-year Senior Notes. The proceeds from this
refinancing were immediately used fo repay all of the Company’s borrowings under its former credit agreement,
which was then terminated.

Credit Facility Agreement

The $300 million Credit Facility is provided by a group of financial institutions and has a bullet maturify in
November 2008. It is not subject to any scheduled principal payments. Borrowings under the $300 miltion Credit
Facility bear inferest at current market rates plus a margin which is based on the Company’s senior unsecured credit
rafings (currently "BBB” by Standard & Poor's and “"Baa3” by Moody’s), and is currently set at LIBOR plus 0.6%.
The Company must also pay utilization and facility fees that are tied to the Company’s credit ratings. The $300 mil-
lion Credit Facility contains covenants including maintaining a ratio of debt to earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization of less than 3.25 to 1.0 and an interest coverage ratio of more than 3.5 to 1.0. The
facility also places certain limitations on the Company including limiting the ability fo grant liens or incur debt at a
subsidiary level. In addition, the $300 million Credit Facility has several evenis of default including upon a change of
control. As of December 31, 2004, approximately $244.6 million was available under the facility. The Credit Facility
is unsecured.
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Senior Nofes

In November 2003, the Company issued $150 million of 4.85% unsecured Senior Notes due November 15,
2010 ("the Senior Notes™). The Senior Notes rank equally with all our unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness.
Interest is payable semi-annually in May and November. Discount and issuance costs approximated $1.2 million
and are being amortized to inferest expense over the seven-year term of the Senior Notes. At the Company’s option,
the Senior Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part ai any time of a redemption price equal to the greater of:

= The principal amount of the Senior Nofes; or

e The sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and inferest thereon
discounted to the redemption date on a semi-annual basis at a comparable freasury rate plus a margin of
0.20%.

The Senior Notes contain limitations on the ability to incur liens and enter info sale and leaseback transactions
exceeding 10% of the Company’s consolidated net worth.

The Company’s weighted average interest rate for the year ended December 31, 2004 was approximately 6%
compared with the weighted average inferest rate for the year ended December 31, 2003 of approximately 5%. The
carrying value of the Company’s debt obligations approximates fair value.

10. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common Stock

The number of authorized shares of the Company’s common stock is 125,000,000 shares with a par value of
$0.01 per share. Holders of the Company’s common stock are entitled to one vote per share. At December 31, 2004,
8,094,154 shares of the Company’s common stock were reserved for issuance pursuant fo the Company’s stock
option plan. ‘

Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors, without further shareholder authorization, is authorized to issue up fo
10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share in one or more series and to defermine and fix the
rights, preferences and privileges of each series, inciuding dividend rights and preferences over dividends on the
common stock and one or more series of the preferred stock, conversion rights, voting rights (in addition fo those
provided by law), redemption rights and the terms of any sinking fund therefore, and rights upon liquidation,
dissolution or winding up, including preferences over the common stock and one or more series of the preferred
stack. The issuance of shares of preferred stock, or the issuance of rights fo purchase such shares, may have the effect
of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of the Company or an unsolicited acquisition proposal.

Shareholder Rights Plan

On August 26, 2002, the Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan under which the Company
declared a non-cash dividend of one right for each outstanding share of common stock. The Rights, which expire on
September 5, 2012, entifle stockholders to buy one one-thousandth of a share of preferred stock at an exercise price
of $150. The Rights were distributed to those stockholders of record as of close of business on September 5, 2002
and are attached to all certificates representing those shares of common stock.

The Rights Plan provides that should any person or group acquire, or announce a tender or exchange offer for
15% or more of the Company’'s common stock, each Right, other than Rights held by the acquiring person or group,
would entitle its holder to purchase a number of shares of the Company’s common stock for 50% of its then-current
market value. Unless a 15% acquisition has occurred, the Rights may be redeemed by the Board of Directors of the
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Company af any time. The Rights Plan will not be triggered by a tender or exchange offer for all ouistanding shares of
the Company at a price and on terms that the Company’s Board of Direclors determines fo be adequate and in the
best interest of the Company and its stockholders.

The Rights Plan exempts any stockholder that beneficially owned 15% or more of the Company’s common
stock as of August 26, 2002. However, the Rights will become exercisable if, at any time after August 26, 2002, any
of these stockhoiders acquire additional shares of the Company’s common stock in an amount which is greater than
2% of the Company’s outstanding common stock.

Share Repurchase Program

On February 5, 2004, the Company announced a share repurchase program, commencing with an initial
buyback of up to $100 million over the two-year period ending December 31, 2005. The share repurchase program
is funded from cash generated from operating activities. Treasury stock is accounted for by the cost method. The
repurchases are made through open market fransactions, and the timing depends on the level of acquisition activity,
business and market conditions, the stock price, trading restrictions and other factors.

In November 2004, in addition to the $100 million buyback amount the Company’s Board of Directors
approved an odditional buyback of up to $200 million to its share repurchase program over the two-year period
ending December 31, 2006. The additional share repurchases are also expected to be funded from cash generated
from operating activities. The Company cannot assure that it will repurchase shares representing the full value of the
program over the two-year period.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company spent $103.8 million on the repurchase of
2,208,500 shares at an average price of $46.97 of which $1.4 miilion was unsetfied at the year end.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) consisted of the following at December 31:

2004 2003 2002
Currency franslation adjustment .. ........................... $33931 $10844 $(23,365)
Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedging arrangements . ... ... — (4386) (4,396)
Additional minimum pension liability . .. ............. ... .. ..., (46,948)  (43,567)  (40,538)
Deferred tax on additional minimum pension liability . ........... 15,982 14,865 6,650
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)........... $§ 2,065 $(18,294) $(61,649)

11.  EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

The Company’s equity incentive plan provides employees and directors of the Company additional incentive 1o
join and/or remain in the service of the Company as well as to maintain and enhance the long-term performance and
profitability of the Company. The Company’'s 2004 equity incentive plan was approved by shareholders on May 6,
2004 and provides that 3.5 million shares of common stock, plus any options outstanding under the Company’s
prior option plan that terminate without being exercised, may be the subject of awards. The plan provides for the grant
of options, restricted stock, performance units and other equity-based awards. The exercise price of options granted
shall not be less than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant. Options generally vest equally
over a five-year period from the dafe of grant and have a maximum term of up to 10 years and 6 months of the total
shares authorized. Up to 2.1 million shares may be granted in the form of restricted stock, restricted stock units,
performance awards and share awards.
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Stock option activity is shown below:
Weighted Average

Number of Options Exercise Price
Outstanding af December 31, 2001 ......................... 4,379,575 $25.79
Granted . .. 912,250 35.21
Exercised . ... ... ... . (239,078) Q4.77)
Forfeifed .. ... ... . . . (252,974) (34.97)
Outstanding at December 31,2002 ......................... 4,799,773 $ 27.65
Granted . ... ... 1,088,000 36.88
Exercised . ... ... ... (197.197) (18.16)
Forfeited ............................. R (68,600) (40.77)
Outstanding ot December 31, 2003 . ........................ 5,621,976 $ 29.81
Granted. .. ... 588,500 47.53
Exercised ...... .. ... ... (992,622) (25.76)
Forfeited . ... ... .. (251,900) (39.24)
Outstanding of December 31,2004 ......................... 4,965,954 $ 32.02
Options exercisable at December 31, 2002 ................... 2,620,713 $18.34
Options exercisable at December 31, 2003 ................... 3,005,676 $22.10
Options exercisable at December 31, 2004 ................... 2,845,782 $ 25.38

At December 31, 2004, 3,128,200 options fo purchase shares of common stock were available for grant. The
following table details the weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at December 31, 2004
by range of exercise prices:

Number of Optlons Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life Options
Outstanding Exercise Price of Options Outstanding Exercisable
1,087,692 $ 795 1.8 1,087,692

210,792 $15.92 2.8 210,792
378,900 $27.49 4.2 328,660
1,518,720 $35.83 8.4 441,978
1,769,850 $46.42 715 776,660
4,965,954 8.1 2,845,782

As of the date granted, the weighted average grant-date fair vaiue of the options granted during the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was approximately $13.52, $7.83 and $11.20 per share, respectively, Such
weighted average grant-date fair value was determined using an option pricing model that incorporated the following
assumptions:

2004 2003(a) 2002

Risk-free interest rate .. ....... ... ... . . .. ... 33% 3.0% 3.0%
Expected life inyedrs ........ ... ... .. .. . . . 5 4 4
Expected volatility . . . ... ... 25%  25%  35%

Expected dividend yield ........ e — — —

(@) In 2003, 385,000 options to purchase shares of common stock with a grant-date fair value of $5.40 were granted on a
performance-related basis and had an expected life of 1.5 years. The performance criteria were met during 2003 ond the
options will vest over a 2-year period.

F-18



METTLER-TOLEDO INTERNATIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —— (Continued)
(In thousands, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

12. BENEFIT PLANS
Mettler-Toledo maintains a number of retirement and other post-refirement employee benefit plans.

Certain subsidiaries sponsor defined contribution plans. Benefits are determined and funded annually based
upon the terms of the plans. Amounts recognized as cost under these plans amounted to $7.5 million, $7.0 million
and $3.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Cerfain subsidiaries sponsor defined benefit plans. Benefits are provided to employees primarily based upeon
years of service and employees’ compensation for certain periods during the last years of employment. Prior to 2002,
the Company's U.S. operations also provided post-retirement medical benefits to their employees. Contributions for
medical benefits are related to employee years of service.

As described in Note 14, during the year ended December 31, 2002 the Company revised its U.S. defined
benefit pension plan to freeze the benefits for current paricipants and to discontinue the plan for all future employees,
resulting in an expense of $1.1 million. In addition, the Company’s U.S. retiree medical program was also
discontinued during 2002 for certain current and all future active employees, resulting in a curtailment gain of
$1.3 million.

In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 106-2 (“FSP 106-2"), “Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003.” FSP 106-2
relates 1o the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Act”) signed info low on
December 8, 2003. The Act infroduced a prescription drug benefit under Medicare (Medicare Part D), as well as
federal subsidy fo sponsors of refiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially
equivaient fo Medicare Part D. During the third quarter of 2004, the Company adopted the provisions of FSP 106-2.
The Company sponsors post-retirement health care plans that provide prescription drug benefits that are deemed
actuarially equivalent to the Medicare Part D and elected to recognize the impact of the federal subsidy on its
accumulated post-refirement benefit obligation and net post-retirement benefit costs in the third quarter of 2004.
Recognition of the Medicare Drug Act decreased the Company’s accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation by
$3.5 million and reduced its net post-retirement benefit cost by approximately $0.2 million in the year ended
December 31, 2004.

In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 03-4, “Accounting for Cash Balance Pension Plans”
('ETF 03-4"), the Company determined in 2003 that its Swiss cash balance pension plan met the requirements
necessitating a change in the method of expense attribution used in its actuarial calculations from the “projected unit
credit’ method fo the “traditional unit credit” method. Unlike the projected unit credit method, the traditional unit credit
method does not assume compensation increases in calculating the benefit obligation, because the pension benefit is
based on a guaranteed return on pension confributions, rather than employees’ compensation for certain periods
during the last years of employment. Accordingly, this required change in methodology resulted in a reduction in the
projected benefit obligation of approximately $53.3 million, which is subject to amortization over the expected future
service life of Switzerland-based employees.
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The Company uses a measurement dafe of September 30 for its defined benefit pension and other benefit plans.
The following table setfs forth the change in benefit obligation, the change in plan assets, the funded status and
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements for the Company’s defined benefit plans and post-
retirement plans at December 31, 2004 and 2003:

U.S. Pension Benefits Non-U.S. Penslon Benefits Other Benefits
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation ot beginning of year .. $ 99,795 $ 89,249 $402,480 $404,057 $129,778 §$ 33,303

Service cost, gross. . ............... 506 431 19,469 19,807 226 132
Interest cost ...................... 6,062 6,129 16,980 18,807 1,617 1,856
Actuarial (gains) losses............. 6,139 9,339 8,923 (73,647) (2.813) 3,956
Plan amendments and other......... — — (1,703) 238 — (6,984)
Benefits paid ..................... (5,057) (5,353) (20,819)  (15,823) {2,460) (2,485)
Impact of foreign currency .......... — — 40,017 49,041 — —
Benefit obligation af end of year. . . ... $107,445 $99,795 5465347 $402,480 $26,348 $129,778

Change in plan assefs:
Fair value of plan assets ot

beginning of year ............... $ 70,466 $ 47,167 $403,651 $355,081 $ - $ —
Actual return on plan assets ......... 8,188 9,624 12,918 3,721 — —
Employer contributions ............. 10,028 19,028 18,740 11,306 2,460 2,485
Plan participants’ contributions .. . .. .. — — 6,388 5,873 163 —
Benefits paid ..................... (5,057)  (5,353) (21,105) (15,823)  (2.623)  (2,485)
Impact of foreign currency . ......... — — 40,106 43,493 — —
Fair value of plan assets of end of year $ 83,625 § 70,466 $460,698 $403,651 S — —
Funded status .................... $(23,820) $(29,329) S (4,649) $ 1,171 $(26,348) $(29,778)
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss . . 37,970 35,914 (45,940)  (60,665) (3,957) (1,324)
Post-measurement date contributions . . 10,006 10,000 — 7111 670 —
Net amount recognized . ............ $ 24156 §$16,585 $(50,589) $(52,383) §(29,635) $(31,102)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:
Non-U.S. Pension

U.S. Penslon Benefiis Benefits Other Benefits
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Other non-curreni assets . ............ S — S — $§21,419 $20981 $§ — 8 —
Pension and other post-retirement
liobilities ........... ... ... ..... (13,813) (19,323) (80,987) (81,023) (29,635 (31,102)
Accumulated other comprehensive 10ss 37,969 35,908 8,979 7,659 — —
Net amount recognized . ............. $24,156 $ 16,585 $(50,589) $(52,383) $(29,635) $(31,102)

The accumulated benefit obligations at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $107.4 million and $99.8 million,
respectively, for the U.S. defined benefit pension plan and $447.9 million and $397.9 million, respectively, for all

F-20




METTLER-TOLEDO INTERNATIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
(In thousands, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

non-U.S. plans. Certain of the plans included within non-U.S. Pension Benefits have benefit obligations which exceed
the fair value of plan assets. The aggregate projected benefit obligation and fair value of assets of these plans as af

December 31, 2004 was $130.0 million and $47.2 million, respectively.

The assumed discount rates and rates of increase in future compensation levels used in calculating the projected
benefit obligations vary according fo the economic condifions of the country in which the retirement plans are

situated. The weighted average rates used for the purposes of the Company’s plans are as follows:

u.s. Non-U.S.
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
Discountrate...... ... ... ... . i 575% 6.25% 7.0% 4.2% 4.5% 4.5%
Compensation increaserate ........................ n/a na nla 22% 25% 25%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assefs........ 85% 85% 85% 52% 6.1% 6.1%

Net periodic pension cost for the defined benefit plans includes the following components for the years ended

December 31:

us. Non-U.S.
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Servicecost, net..................... $ 506 § 431 § 897 $13081 $13,934 $13,982
Interest cost on projected benefit

obligations ....................... 6,062 6,129 6,167 16,980 18,807 17,386
Expected return on plan assets ......... (6.390) (5,033) (5,196) (21,304) (22,281) (21,662)
Impact of plan freeze . ................ — — 1,136 — — —
impact of early refirement . ............ — 428 1,615 — — —
Recognition of actuarial losses (gains) . .. 2,279 1,74 791  (1.620) 642 333
Net periodic pensioncost..........:... $2457 $3669 $5410 $ 7,137 $11,102 $10,039

Net periodic post-retirement benefit cost for the U.S. post-retirement plans includes the foliowing components for

the years ended December 31:
2004 2003 2002

SBIVICE COSt . . $ 226 §$ 132 § 324
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations ....................... 1,617 1,856 2,551
Curtgilment goinon planfreeze ........... ... ... . ... — (929) (1,334)
Impact of early retitement . . ... ... .. ... — — 365
Net amortization and deferral . ......... ... ... ... ... . ... ... ... (841) (576) (209)
Net periodic post-retirement benefitcost . .......................... $1,002 $§ 483 §$ 1,697

The accumulated post-refirement benefit obligation and net periodic post-retirement benefit cost were principally

defermined using discount rates of 5.75% in 2004, 6.25% in 2003 and 7.0% in 2002 and health care cost trend

rates ranging from 9% to 13.5% in 2004 and 9% fo 14% in 2003 and 2002, decreasing fo 4.5% in 2009,
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The health care cost frend rate assumption has a significant effect on the accumulated posi-retirement benefit
obligation and net periodic post-retirement benefit cost. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost
trend rates would have the following effects:

One-Percentage-  One-Percentage-
Point Increase Point Decrease

Effect on tofal of service and interest cost components ............. $ 142 S (132
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligation . ...................... $1,839 $(1,719)

Plan assets relate principally to the Company’s U.S. and Swiss subsidiaries and consist of equity investments,
obligations of the U.S. Treasury or other governmental agencies, and other interest-bearing investments. Actual and
target asset allocations in the Company’s pension plans at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

U.S. Non-U.S.
Torget 2004 2003 Target 2004 2003
Debt securities ... ............ ... 33% 32% 31% 65% 66% 52%
Equity securities. . ......... ... .. .. . . 65% 66% 67% 25% 24% 23%
Real esfate and other ............................ 2% 2% _2% _10% _10% _25%
TOtOl. .o 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Investment policies and strategies for each of the Company’s pension plans are determined periodically by
pension frustees for each plan, having regard for the potential risks and returns offered by investment in the various
assets available. Target asset allocation and investment refurn criteria are established by the trustees with the
overriding objective of stable earnings growth. Actual results are monitored against those targets and the trustees are
required to report fo the members of each plan, including an analysis of investment performance on an annual basis
at a minimum. Day-fo-day asset management is typically performed by a third party asset management company,
reporting fo the pension trustees. The long-term rate of return on plan asset assumptions used to determine pension
expense under U.S. GAAP are generally based on historical investment performance and the target investiment return
criteria for the future determined by the trustees.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service as appropriate, are expected fo be paid:
U.S. Pension  Non-U.S. Pension  Other Benefits  Other Benefits

Benefits Benefits Bross - Net of Subsidy
2005 ... ... $4,955 $12,798 $2,844 $2,844
2006 ... .. 5,060 14,102 2,860 2,614
2007 .. ... 5,106 15,474 2,846 2,584
2008 .. ... 5,245 16,608 2,807 2,530
2000 ... 5,407 18,079 2,901 2,613
2010-2014 ... ................... 30,309 110,783 12,040 10,855

As a result of the voluntary incremental pension payments made to the Company’s underfunded pension plans
of $10.0 million in 2004 and $17.1 million in 2003, the Company is not required to make pension funding
payments to its U.S. and U.K. pension plans during the next two years. Similar fo 2004 and 2003, voluntary
contributions fo the Company’s pension plans may be made.

in 2005, the Company expects to make normal employer pension contributions of approximately $11.9 million

to its non-U.S. pension plans and normal employer contributions of approximately $2.8 million to its U.S. post-
retirement medical plan.
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13. TAXES
The sources of the Company’s earnings before taxes were as follows for the years ending December 31:
2004 2003 2002
United States . ... ... $ 11,964 $ 29,208 § 29,669
Non-United Stafes .. ........... ... . i 142,260 107,703 80,741
Earnings beforetaxes .. .......... ... .. ... . i, $154,224  $136,911  $110,410
The provisions for taxes consist of:
AdJustments
Current Deferred to Goodwill Total
Year ended December 31, 2004:
United States federal .. ......................... ... S 643 54,606 S— $ 5,249
Stateanddocal ....... ... ... .. ... 594 1,571 — 2,165
Non-United States . .........................c.oin. 45,137  (6.284) - 38,853
$46,374 S (107) §_—: $46,267
Adjustments
Current Deferred to Goodwill Total
Year ended December 31, 2003:
United States federal .. ........................... $ 3,470 $10,356 $— $13,826
Stateandlocal ......... .. ... ... 585 700 — 1,285
Non-United Stafes . ................ ... ... .. ... 26,885 (923) = 25,962
$30,940 $10,133 $— $41,073
Adjustments
Current Deferred to Goodwill Total
Year ended December 31, 2002:
United States federal . .............. ... ... ........ $14,291  $(12,517)  $9,488 $11,262
Stateand local. .......... ... ... . . 539 — — 539
Non-United States ........... .. ... ... ........... 120 (1,932) — (1,812)

$14,950 $(14,449)  $9.,488 $ 9,989

During 2002, the Company recorded a one-time benefit of $23.1 million related to the completion of a tax
restructuring program and related audits.

The adjustments to goodwill during the year ending December 31, 2002 relate to tax benefits utilized that were
not previously recognized in the purchase price allocation pertaining to previous acquisitions.
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The provisions for tax expense for the years ending December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 differed from the
amounts computed by applying the United States federal income tax rate of 35% to the earnings before taxes as a
result of the following:

2004 2003 2002

Expected faX. . ... e $ 53,978 $47,919 § 38,643
United States state and local income taxes, net of tederal income tax

benefit .. 2,165 1,285 350
Change in valugtion gllowance .. ............................ 2,375 (2,728) 6,751
Tax restructuring program and audit settlements ... .............. — — (23,135)
Other non-United States income taxes at other than a 35% rate ...  (12,646)  (8,695) (13,499)
Other, Mt . e 395 3,292 879
Total provision fortaxes. . ... $ 46,267 541,073 $ 9,989

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities are presented below af December 31:

Deferred tax assets: 2004 2003
IVBNIOTY . o o e S 5727 § 522
Accrued and other liabilities ............ .. ... ... .. L. 23,634 21,364
Accrued post-retirement benefit and pension costs . ..................... 34,382 29,265
Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards . ....................... 56,309 51,315
O .. 5,282 2,099

Total deferred 10X @SSEIS .. .. .. 125,334 104,565

Less valugtion dllowWanCe .. ... i (25,0000  (36,238)

Total deferred tax assets less valuation allowance ........................ 100,334 68,327

Deferred tax liabilities:

VERIOTY 903 3,455
Properly, plant and equipment .. ... ... ... ... ... 36,514 18,465
Rainin intangibies amortization. . ............. .. ... . 16,851 13,103
Prepaid post-retirement benefit and pensioncosts . .................. e 9,686 6,634
O Nl L 14,525 8,745
Infernational €OMNINGS .. .. ... i . 8,776 10,859
Total deferred tax liabilities .. ...... ... ... 87,255 61,261
Net deferred taX QsSel . . ... ... . . $ 13079 § 7,066

The Company has recorded valuation allowances related fo its deferred income tax assets due to the uncertainty
of the ultimate realization of future benefits from such assets. The pofential decrease or increase of the valuation
allowance in the near term is dependent on the future ability of the Company to realize the deferred tax assets that are
affected by the future profitability of operations in various worldwide jurisdictions. The 2004 net change in the
valuation allowance includes a $10.9 million release of the valuation allowance attributable to tax credit carryfor-
wards and o $2.4 million increase of valuation allowance attributable to tax loss carryforwards. The 2004
$10.9 million valuation allowance release relates to tax benefits associated with stock option exercises and
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accordingly has been recorded in the consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity. $3.0 miilion and $3.2 million
of the valuation allowance will be credited to shareholders’ equity and goodwill, respectively, if and when realized.

At December 31, 2004, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Company had net operating loss carryfor-
wards of $3.3 million that expire in various amounts through 2021 and foreign tax credits of $11.6 million that will
expire in various amounts through 2014, The Company has various U.S. stafe net operating losses and various
foreign net operating losses that have various expiration periods.

The Company plans to repatriate in future years $75 million of previously unremifted earnings of foreign
subsidiaries. Accordingly, a deferred tax liability of $8.8 million was established to account for the incremental tax
costs associated with the planned repatriation. No deferred tax liability has been recognized on the residual
unremitted earnings approximating $316 million, as such eamings have been permanently reinvested in the
business.

In October, 2004, the United States enacted the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”). The Act creates
a temporary incentive for U.S. corporations fo repatriate accumulated income earned abroad by providing an
85 percent dividends received deduction for certain dividends from controlled foreign corporations. The deduction is
subject to @ number of limitations and, as of foday, uncertainty remains as to how fo inferpret numerous provisions in
the Act. As such, Management is not yet in a position o decide on whether, and fo what extent, the Company might
repairiate foreign earnings subject fo these new provisions. Management expects fo finalize their assessment during
2005.

The Company is currenfly under examination in various taxing jurisdictions in which it conducts business
operations, While the Company has not yet received any material assessments from these taxing authorities, the
Company believes that adequate amounts of taxes and related interest and penalties have been provided for any
odverse adjustments as a result of these examinations and that the ultimate outcome of these examinations will not
result in an adverse material impact on the Company’s consolidated resulls of operations or financial position.

14. OTHER CHARGES (INCOME), NET

Other charges (income), net consists primarily of charges related fo the Company’s restructuring programs,
inferest income, (gains) losses from foreign currency fransactions, (gains) losses from sales of assets and other
items,

During the three months ended June 30, 2002, the Company recorded a restructuring charge of $28.7 million
(520.1 million after tax), primarily related to the exit of manufacturing fagilities in France and the United States, and
in order to further reduce the Company’s expense structure. This charge comprised restructuring liabilities of
$24.3 million and related asset impairments of $4.4 million. In total, the restructuring plan resulted in cash outlays of
approximately $20.2 million and non-cash items of $8.5 million. The charge comprised involuntary employee
separation benefits, write-downs of impaired assets to be disposed and other exit costs. The Company invoiuntarily
terminated approximately net 300 employees in targeted manufacturing and administrative areas. The asset impair-
ments of $4.4 million primarily relate to plant and equipment disposals resulting from the exit of certain manufactur-
ing facilities. Fair value of these assets was defermined on the basis of their net realizable value on disposal.

As part of this restructuring program, the Company revised its U.S. defined benefit pension plan to freeze the
benefits for current participants and to discontinue the plan for all future employees, resulting in an expense of
$1.1 million. In addition, the Company’s U.S. retiree medical program was also discontinued for certain current and
all future active employees, resulting in a curtailment gain of $1.3 million.

As noted in previous filings, in accordance with U.S. GAAP, the charge taken in the second quarter of 2002
related to the exit of the Company’s French manufacturing facility was limited to the minimum contractual payment
required by French law. During the three months ended March 31, 2003, the Company recorded a restructuring
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charge of $5.4 million ($3.8 million after fox), related to the final union setflement on the closure of this facility. This
charge comprises the additional employee-related costs resulting from final seftlement of the social plan negotiated
with the French workers’ council during the first quarter of 2003,

The Company assesses its accrual for restructuring activities on an ongoing basis. During the three months
ended September 30, 2003, the Company recorded a reduction in the restructuring accrual of $1.0 million, included
within Other charges (income), net, as o result of lower employee-related charges than originally anticipated. Also, a
restructuring charge of $1.4 million was recorded during the three months ended September 30, 2003, related fo an
extension of manufacturing consolidation activities. This charge comprised severance of $1.0 million, included within
Other charges (income), net, and inventory write-downs of $0.4 million, included within Cost of sales.

The Company’s aforementioned restructuring programs and related accruals were substantially completed at
December 31, 2003.

A roll-forward of the Company’s accrual for restructuring activities during 2003 follows:

Employee Lease
Related Termination Other Total
(@) (b) (©

Balance at December 31, 2002 .................... $11,803 $2032 $420 $ 14,255
Restructuring expense (d).................. ... ... 6,404 — - 6,404
Adjustment 1o previous accrual. ................ ... .. (960) — — (960)
Cashpayments . ...................iiiiiiiii. .. (16,492) (293) @ (16,792)
Other utilizations and transfers to operating liabilities . . .. (2,398) (1,866) (460) (4,724)
Impact of foreign currency . ........... ... ... 1,643 127 47 1,817
Balance at December 31,2003 .................... $ - $§ - 8§ = —

(a) Employse-related costs include severance, medical and early refirement cosls for approximately net 300 employees,
substantially all of which had been ferminated as of December 31, 2003. These employees include positions primarily in
manufacturing, as well as administrative and other personnel, primarily at the Principal U.S. Operations and Other Western
European Operations.

(b) Lease termination costs primarily relate fo the early fermination of leases on vacarted property, primarily af the Principal U.S.
Operations and Other Western European Operations.

(c) Other costs include expenses associated with equipment dismantling and disposal, and other exit costs.

(d) Excludes the charges with respect fo inventory and other asset write-downs of $4.4 million in 2002 and $0.4 million in
2003, recorded as reductions in the book values of the related assefs.

(e) Restructuring accruals included in accrued and other liabilities at December 31, 2004 were $3.3 million and primarily
represent employee-related costs such as severance.
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating Leases

The Company leases certain of its facilifies and equipment under operating leases. The future minimum lease
payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows at December 31, 2004:

20005 L $21,060
2006 ... 15,846
2007 12,057
2008 ... 8,592
2000 . 5,868
TNereaM T . . 22,352

s o ] O $85,775

Rent expense for operating leases amounted to $29.4 million, $28.2 million and $24.7 million for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Legal

The Company is party to various legal proceedings, including certain environmental matiers, incidental fo the
normal course of business. Management does not expect that any of such proceedings will have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial condifion or results of operations,

16. SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are the individual reporting units within the Company. These units are managed separately,
and it is at this level where the defermination of resource aliocation is made. The units have been aggregated based
on operating segments in geographic regions that have similar economic characteristics and meet the aggregation
criteria of SFAS 131. The Company has determined that as of December 31, 2004 there are six reportable segments:
Principal U.S. Operations, Other Western European Operations, Principal Central European Operations, Swiss R&D
and Manufacturing Operations, Asia and Other.

Principal U.S. Operations represent certain of the Company’s marketing and producing organizafions located in
the United States. Other Western European Operations include the Company’s market organizations in Western Europe
that are not included in Principal Central European Operations. Principal Central European Operations primarily
include the Company’s German marketing and producing organizatfions that primarily serve the German market and,
to a lesser extent, Europe. Swiss R&D and Manufaciuring Operations consist of the organizations located in
Switzerland that are responsible for the development, production and marketing of precision instruments, including
weighing, analytical and measurement technologies for use in a variety of industrial and laboratory applications. Asia
represents the Company’s marketing and producing organizations located in Asia. The Company’s market organiza-
tions are geographically focused and are responsible for all aspects of the Company’s sales and service. Operating
segments that exist outside these reportable segments are included in Other.
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The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies. The Company evaluates performance based on Segment Profit (gross profit less research and
development, selling, general and administrative expenses and restructuring charges, before amortization, interest
expense and other charges). Intersegment sales and transfers are priced fo reflect consideration of market conditions
and the regulations of the countries in which the transferring entities are located. The foliowing tables show the

operaiions of the Company’s operating segments:
Purchase of

Net Sales to  Net Sales to Property,
For the Year Ended External Other Total Net Segment Piant and
December 31, 2004 Customers Segments Sales Profls Depreciation  Total Assets  Equipment  Goodwlll
Principal U.S. Operations .... $ 441,707 § 34,939 § 476,646 $ 67,901 $ 6197 § 707,902 $ 4,569 $201,444
Other Western Eurcpean

Operations.............. 339,807 24,551 364,358 24,640 317 285,035 4,201 88,303
Principal Central European

Operations. ............. 198,475 61,776 260,251 22,680 3.152 218,260 1,806 28,086
Swiss R&D and Mfg.

Operations. ............. 47,582 204,172 251,754 44,030 7.642 261,812 5,908 24,565
Asia............ 178,311 51,884 230,195 41,276 3,445 168,865 3,542 10,842
Other(@)................. 198,572 49,062 247,634 21,602 2,052 683,393 2,849 80,435
Eliminations and

Corporate (b) ........... — (426,384) (426,384) (42,719 1,009 (846,195) 5,007 —
Total . ....... ... L $1,404,454 $ — $1,404,454 $179,410 $26,668 $1,480,072 $27,882 $433,675

Purchase of
Net Sales to  Net Sales to Property,
For the Year Ended External Other Total Net Segment Plant and
December 31, 2003 Customers Segments Sales Profit (¢) Depreciation  Total Assets  Equipment  Goodwill
Principal U.S. Operations .... $ 426,680 $ 39,259 $ 465,939 §$ 68516 $ 6,936 S 687,875 §$ 7,689 $200,294
Other Western European '

Operations . ............. 306,644 22,954 329,598 18,491 3,370 270,416 3,927 83,939
Principal Central European

Operations.............. 180,272 59,048 239,320 20,453 2,810 186,754 2,049 26,931
Swiss R&D and Mfg.

Operations.............. 49,897 185,798 235,695 39,970 6,595 196,012 6,239 23,091
Asig... ... 147,537 37,320 184,857 29,575 2,505 141,504 4,352 10,234
Other{a@)................. 193,401 38,984 232,385 12,330 2,179 675,292 2,754 77,451
Eliminations and

Corporate () ........... — (383,363) (383,363) (27.428) 691 (770,577) 142 —
Total ...l $1,304,431 §  — $1,304,431 $161,907 $25,086 $1,387,276 $27,152 $421,940

Footnotes on next page.
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Purchase of

Net Sales to  Net Sales to Property,
For the Year Ended External Other Total Net Segment Plant and
December 31, 2002 Customers Segments Sales Profit (d) Depreciation  Total Assefs  Equipment  Goodwill
Principal U.S. Operations .... $ 441,898 § 33,380 §$ 475278 $ 57,008 § 8457 S 678,797 $14,480 $201,663
Other Western European

Operations. ............. 264,683 22,359 287,042 3,709 3,195 184,044 2,156 76,184
Principal Central European

Operations.............. 158,232 49,052 207,284 13,360 2,607 149,198 2,908 23,607
Swiss R&D and Mfg.

Operations.............. 49,632 176,496 226,128 47,193 5,916 495,442 4,905 21,512
Asia............ I 118,936 23,349 142,285 20,966 2,143 108,027 4,121 8,728
Other(a)................. 180,326 37.162 217,488 7,357 2,479 632,746 1,853 76,657
Eliminations and

Corporate () ........... — (341,798) (341,798) (13,101) 595 (944,861) 2,734 —
Total .................... $1,213,707 § — 81,213,707 $136,492 $25,392 $1,303,393 $33,157 $408,351

(a) Other includes reporting units in Eastern Europe, Latin America and segments from other countries that do not meet the
quantifative thresholds but meet the majority of the aggregation criferia of SFAS 131,

(b) Eliminations and Corporale includes the elimination of infersegment fransactions as well as cerfain corporate expenses,
intercompany investments and certain goodwill, which are nof included in the Company’s operating segments.

(c) The results for the year ended December 31, 2003 include a restructuring charge of $5.4 million recorded in the Other
Western European Operations segment (S4.4 million) and Other segment (S1.0 million).

(d) The results for the year ended December 31, 2002 include a restructuring charge of $28.7 million, recorded in the second
quarter, in the Principal U.S. Operations (S11.8 million), Principal Central European QOperations (52.8 million), Swiss R&D
and Manufacturing Operations (S0.1 million), Other Western European Operations (S11.4 million), Asia (S0.1 million) and
Other (52.5 million) segments.

The Company sells precision instruments, including weighing instruments and cerfain analyfical and measure-
ment technologies, and related services 1o a variety of customers and industries. None of these customers account for
more than 2% of net sales. Service revenues are primarily derived from sales of spare parts and services such as
calibration, cenification and repair, much of which is provided under contracts. A breakdown of the Company’s sales
by category for the years ended December 31 follows:

2004 2003 2002
Weighing-related instruments. . .................. ... ... $ 670,011 S 629,797 S 594,465
Non-weighing instruments . . .......................... 412,086 384,925 359,616
SeIVICE . .. 322,357 289,709 259,626
Totalnetsales ...........cooeviiiiiiiiiiiiaaa... $1,404,454  $1,304,431 $1,213,707
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in certain circumstances our operating segments sell directly into other geographies. A breakdown of net sales to
external customers by geographic customer destination and property, plant and equipment, net for the year ended
December 31 is as follows:

Property, Plant and

Net Sales Equipment, Net
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003
United States .. ................ S 486,660 S§ 480,418 § 494,913 $ 38,699 S 41,398
Other Americas ................ 79,316 73,750 72,754 1,197 614
Total Americas. . ............... 565,976 554,168 567,667 39,896 42,012
Germany ..................... 131,862 122,706 104,311 32,524 30,781
France ... 112,669 99,303 90,046 5,659 5,196
United Kingdom ............... 58,734 55,215 47,228 8,534 7,074
Switzerland .. ................. 56,669 51,750 46,274 126,385 118,402
Other Europe . ................. 245,323 224,790 197,225 6,913 6,154
Total Burope . ................. 605,257 553,764 485,084 180,015 167,607
China........................ 101,298 82,308 59,828 20,449 19,813
RestofWorld ................. 131,923 114,191 101,128 2,349 2,080
Total Asia/Rest of World . ........ 233,221 196,499 160,956 22,798 21,893
Totals . ... ... $1,404,454 $1,304,431 $1,213,707 $242,709 $231,512

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As part of the Rainin acquisition, the Company entered into an agreement 1o lease cerfain propery from the
former owner and current General Manager of Rainin. During the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
the Company made lease payments with respect fo this agreement of $2.3 million, $2.2 million and $1.9 million,
respectively. In addition, Rainin continued to purchase certain products from its former owner. During the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the volume of these purchases was $0.8 million, $1.1 million and
$1.5 million, respectively. The agreement to purchase these products was terminated during the third quarter of
2004. This fermination did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. All of the
Company’s transactions with the former owner of Rainin were in the normal course of business.
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18. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly financial dafa for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter (a) Quarter Quarter Quarter
2004
Netsales ......... ... ... .. i $318,709 $344,492 $342,048  $399,205
Grossprofit ... ... ... . ... ... 150,276 167,919 165,755 198,457
Netearnings ......................coo.... $ 18622 $ 28418 § 24,628 $ 36,289

Basic earnings per common share:
Netearnings ............................ $0.42 $0.64 $0.56 $0.83
Weighted average number of common shares .. 44,557,443 44,469,648 44,320,477 43,601,286
Diluted earnings per common share:
Neteamings ............................ $0.41 $0.62 $0.54 $0.81
Weighted average number of common shares .. 45,836,934 45,750,652 45,520,086 44,828,205
Market price per share:

High. ... $46.46 $49.58 $49.15 $51.97
LOW . $40.67 $43.70 $40.50 $46.51
2003
Netsales ............ ... ... ... ... ... .... $291,808 $321,363  $320,814 $370,446
Grossprofit ......... .. ... ... ... 133,658 156,411 151,864 176,243
Neteamings ................. .. ........... $ 12935 §$ 25780 § 24,182 $§ 32,941

Basic earnings per common share:
Netearnings ............................ $0.29 $0.58 $0.54 $0.74
Weighted average number of common shares .. 44,393,312 44,434,612 44,485,712 44,582,017
Diluted earnings per common share:
Neteamings ............................ $0.29 $0.57 $0.53 $0.72
Weighted average number of common shares .. 45,288,823 45,467,106 45,568,383 45,711,078
Market price per share:
High. ... ... $34.12 $38.00 $39.75 $42.73
LOW . $28.90 $29.82 $34.60 $36.06

(a) The financial data for the first quarter of 2003 includes a charge of $5.4 million ($3.8 million affer tax) primarily related fo
headcount reductions and manufacturing transfers (Noie 14).
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Schedule iI- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (in thousands)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additlons
Mm (2)
Balance at Charged fo
the Beginning Costs and Charged to Balance at
Description of Period Expenses Other Accounts -Deductions- End of Perlod
Note(A) Note(B)
Accounts Receivable-allowance for
doubtful accounts:
Year ended December 31, 2004 . . 10,489 731 443 1,904 9,759
Year ended December 31, 2003 .. 10,916 765 742 1,934 10,489
Year ended December 31, 2002 . . 9,450 778 776 88 10,916
Allowance for inventory:
Year ended December 31, 2004 . . 38,745 7,235 1,909 12,220 35,669
Year ended December 31, 2003.. 30,831 8,033 3,485 3,604 38,745
Year ended December 31, 2002 . . 30,965 6,022 3,047 9,203 30,831
Deferred tax valugtion allowance:
Year ended December 31, 2004 . . 36,238 2,375 13,613 25,000
Year ended December 31, 2003 . . 68,344 (2,728) — 29,378 36,238
Year ended December 31, 2002 . . 71,081 6,751 — 9,488 68,344

Note (A)

For accounts receivable and inventory, primarily comprised of currency translation adjustments.

Note (B)

For accounts receivable, represents excess of uncollectible balances written off over recoveries of accounts

previously written off.

For inventory, represents excess of book value of unsold inventory disposed over proceeds received on disposal.
For deferred tax valuation allowance, 2004 represents a reduction in the deferred tax assets related to tax credit

and tax loss carryforwards.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

|, Robert F. Spoerry, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Meitler-Toledo International In¢.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this repon,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15¢e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure confrols and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for exiernal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(¢) Evaiuated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability fo record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s infernal control over financial reporing.

/s/ RoBERT F. SPOERRY

Robert F. Spoerry
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 25, 2005




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 QF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, William P. Donnelly, cerify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Mettler-Toledo International Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any unirue statement ot a material fact or omit fo siate
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this repon,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, resulis of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this repor;

4. The registrant’s other cetifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and infernal conirol over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 130-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(o) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including ifs
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known 10 us by others within those entities, particularly during the perfiod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting fo be designed under our supervision, fo provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reponing and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generaily
accepted accounting principles;

(¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarer (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has moterially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the regisirant’s internal
control over financial reponring; and

5. The registrant's other cerifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commiftee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely 1o adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal confrol over financial reporting.

/s/  WiLLam P. DONNELLY

William P. Donnelly
Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 25, 2005




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350,
Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code), each of the undersigned officers of Mettler-Toledo International Inc. (the
“Company”) does hereby cettify, fo such officer's knowledge, that:

This annual report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2004 fully complies with the requirements
of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the information contained in this report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ RoBERT F. SPOERRY

Robert F. Spoerry
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ WiLLiam P. DONNELLY

William P. Donnelly
Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 25, 2005




Corporate Information

Corporaie Offices
Mettler-Toledo Infernational Inc.
Im Langacher

P.O. Box MT-100

CH-8606 Greifensee, Switzerland
Phone +41-44-944 22 11

Fax  +41-44-944 24 70
www.mt.com

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Metlon Investor Services LLC acls as primary
Transfer Agent and Registrar for the Company.
Questions should be sent to:
Melion Investor Services LLC
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield Park, New Jersey 07680
Phone 800-526-080"
www.melloninvestor.com

Shareholders
The Company esfimates it has approximately
15,000 shareholders.

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of sharehoiders will be held at
4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, April 27, 2005 at the
Company’s subsidiary Safeline Inc., 6005 Benjamin
Road, Tampa, Florida 33634. A nofice of the meet-
ing, together with a form of proxy and a proxy state-
ment, will be mailed to shareholders on or about
March 15, 2005,

Investor Relations

Direct requests for information to:
Mary T. Finnegan
Treasurer / Investor Relations
1900 Polaris Parkway
Columbus, Ohio 43240
Phone 614-438-4748
Fax 614-438-4646
mary.finnegan@mt.com

Officers

Peter Biirker
Human Resources

Board of Directors

William P. Donnelly
Chief Financial Officer

Olivier A. Filliol
Global Sales, Service and Marketing,
Process Analytics

Jean-Lucien Gloor
Information Systems & Logistics

Timothy P. Hoynes
Retail

Karl M. Lang
Asia / Pacific

Beat E. Liithi
Laborafory

Kenneth A. Peters
North America

Robert F. Spoerry
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer

Urs Widmer
Industrial

Robert F. Spoerry

Chairman of the Board,

President and Chief Executive Officer
Director since 1996

Francis A. Contino
Executive Vice President -
Strategic Planning

and Chief Financial Officer,
McCormick & Company, Inc.
Director since 2004

John T. Dickson

Chief Executive Officer and President,
Agere Systems Inc.

Director since 2000

i Philip H. Geier, Jr.

Retired Chairman of the Board

and Chief Executive Officer,

The Inferpublic Group of Companies
Director since 2001

John B. Macomber

Principal, JOM Investment Group;
Former Chairman and President,
Export-import Bank of the United States
Director since 1996

Hons-Ulrich Marki

Chairman and General Manager,
IBM Europe / Middle Eqost / Africa
Director since 2002

George M. Milne, Jr.

Retired Executive Vice President,

Pfizer Global R&D,

Retired President, Worldwide Strafegic
and Operations Management, Pfizer Inc.
Director since 1999

Thomas P. Salice
Managing Member,
Sceptra Capital Partners, LLC
Director since 1996




www.mt.com

© Mettier-Toledo Infernational Inc
Creation: MarCom Greifensee

Printed in U.S.A.




